

STATE OF ILLINOIS



HOUSE JOURNAL

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

NINETY-FIFTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY

159TH LEGISLATIVE DAY

REGULAR & PERFUNCTORY SESSION

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2007

1:06 O'CLOCK P.M.

**HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
Daily Journal Index
159th Legislative Day**

Action	Page(s)
Adjournment	53
Change of Sponsorship.....	42
Introduction and First Reading – HB 4153	77
Legislative Measures Approved for Floor Consideration.....	4
Legislative Measures Assigned to Committee	5
Letter of Transmittal.....	4
Messages From The Senate.....	6
Motions Submitted	6
Perfunctory Adjournment.....	77
Perfunctory Session.....	77
Quorum Roll Call	4
Report From Standing Committees	5, 77
Veto Motions Submitted	5

Bill Number	Legislative Action	Page(s)
HB 0551	Senate Message – Passage w/ SA	9
HB 0719	Committee Report - Concur in SA.....	4
HB 0921	Senate Message – Passage w/ SA	8
HB 1284	Senate Message – Passage w/ SA	38
HB 1514	Motion Submitted	6
HB 1514	Senate Message – Passage w/ SA	39
HB 2353	Motion Submitted	6
HB 2353	Senate Message – Passage w/ SA	42
HB 2544	Committee Report	5
HB 2544	Second Reading.....	47
HB 4151	Motion.....	46
HB 4151	Motion Submitted	6
HR 0749	Committee Report	77
HR 0749	Posting Requirement Suspended.....	53
SB 0121	Total Veto	44
SB 0186	Total Veto	44
SB 0229	Amendatory Veto.....	47
SB 0229	Motion Submitted	6
SB 0247	Total Veto	45
SB 0262	Total Veto	45
SB 0285	Total Veto	45
SB 0514	Total Veto	45
SB 0544	Amendatory Veto.....	43
SB 0627	Total Veto	45
SB 0735	Total Veto	46
SB 0764	Amendatory Veto.....	43
SB 0774	Amendatory Veto.....	43, 53
SB 0774	Motion Submitted	6
SB 0835	Total Veto	46
SB 0934	Second Reading – Amendment/s	47
SB 1011	Total Veto	46
SB 1201	Amendatory Veto.....	43
SB 1344	Total Veto	46
SB 1366	Amendatory Veto.....	44

SB 1463	Total Veto	47
SB 1553	Amendatory Veto.....	44
SB 1664	Amendatory Veto.....	44
SJR 0059	Committee Report	5
SJR 0072	Senate Message	42

[October 11, 2007]

4

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

Representative Hannig in the chair.

Prayer by Doorkeeper of the House Lee A. Crawford, who is the Pastor of the Cathedral of Praise Christian Center in Springfield, IL.

Representative Osterman led the House in the Pledge of Allegiance.

By direction of the Speaker, a roll call was taken to ascertain the attendance of Members, as follows:

112 present. (ROLL CALL 1)

By unanimous consent, Representatives Bassi, Currie, Hamos, May, Meyer and Patterson were excused from attendance.

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

October 11, 2007

Mark Mahoney
Chief Clerk of the House
402 State House
Springfield, IL 62706

Dear Clerk Mahoney:

Please be advised that I am extending the Final Action Deadline to October 12, 2007 for the following Bills:

House Bills: 551, 921, 1284, 1514 and 2544.

If you have questions, please contact my Chief of Staff, Tim Mapes, at 782-6360.
With kindest personal regards, I remain

Sincerely yours,
s/Michael J. Madigan
Speaker of the House

TEMPORARY COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

Representative Lang replaced Representative Hannig in the Committee on Rules on October 11, 2007.

Representative Acevedo replaced Representative Currie in the Committee on Rules (A) on October 11, 2007.

REPORT FROM THE COMMITTEE ON RULES

Representative Currie, Chairperson, from the Committee on Rules to which the following were referred, action taken on October 11, 2007, reported the same back with the following recommendations:

LEGISLATIVE MEASURES APPROVED FOR FLOOR CONSIDERATION:

That the Motion be reported "recommends be adopted" and placed on the House Calendar:
Motion to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 719.

That the bill be reported "approved for consideration" and be placed on the order of Second Reading: HOUSE BILL 2544.

LEGISLATIVE MEASURES ASSIGNED TO COMMITTEE:

Elementary & Secondary Education: HOUSE RESOLUTION 749.

The committee roll call vote on the foregoing Legislative Measures is as follows:

4, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

Y Currie(D), Chairperson	A Black(R), Republican Spokesperson
Y Lang(D) (replacing Hannig)	Y Hassert(R)
Y Turner(D)	

Representative Turner, Chairperson, from the Committee on Rules to which the following were referred, action taken on October 11, 2007, (A) reported the same back with the following recommendations:

LEGISLATIVE MEASURES ASSIGNED TO COMMITTEE:

Elementary & Secondary Education: HOUSE AMENDMENT No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2544.

The committee roll call vote on the foregoing Legislative Measures is as follows:

4, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

Y Acevedo(D) (replacing Currie)	Y Black(R), Republican Spokesperson
Y Hannig(D)	A Hassert(R)
Y Turner(D)	

REPORT FROM STANDING COMMITTEES

Representative McCarthy, Chairperson, from the Committee on Higher Education to which the following were referred, action taken on October 11, 2007, reported the same back with the following recommendations:

That the resolution be reported "recommends be adopted" and be placed on the House Calendar: SENATE JOINT RESOLUTION 59.

The committee roll call vote on Senate Joint Resolution 59 is as follows:

13, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

Y McCarthy(D), Chairperson	Y Jakobsson(D), Vice-Chairperson
Y Bost(R), Republican Spokesperson	Y Beiser(D)
Y Black(R)	A Brady(R)
Y Brosnahan(D)	Y D'Amico(D)
Y Eddy(R)	Y Flowers(D)
A Howard(D)	Y Miller(D)
Y Myers(R)	Y Pritchard(R)
Y Tracy(R)	

VETO MOTIONS SUBMITTED

Representative Mathias submitted the following written motion, which was placed on the order of Motions:

MOTION

I move that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 229, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for Change notwithstanding.

Representative Yarbrough submitted the following written motion, which was placed on the order of Motions:

MOTION #2

I move that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 774, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for Change notwithstanding.

MOTIONS SUBMITTED

Representative Eddy submitted the following written motion, which was placed on the order of Motions in Writing:

MOTION

Pursuant to Rule 18(g), I move to discharge the Committee on Rules from further consideration of HOUSE BILL 4151 and advance to the order of Second Reading-Standard Debate.

Representative Pritchard submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

MOTION

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 1514.

Representative Feigenholtz submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

MOTION

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 3 to HOUSE BILL 2353.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Shipley, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has passed a bill of the following title, the Governor's specific recommendations for change to the contrary notwithstanding, in the passage of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:

Senate Bill No. 229

A bill for AN ACT concerning civil law.

I am further directed to transmit to the House of Representatives the following copy of the Governor's specific recommendations for change to the Senate:

Passed by the Senate, October 10, 2007, by a three-fifths vote.

Deborah Shipley, Secretary of the Senate

August 28, 2007

To the Honorable Members of the

Illinois Senate

95th General Assembly

Pursuant to Article IV, Section 9(e) of the Illinois Constitution of 1970, I hereby return Senate Bill 229, entitled "AN ACT concerning civil law.", with the following specific recommendations for change:

on page 47, line 5, by replacing "Wages" with "Maximum wages"; and

on page 47, line 6, by reinserting "maximum"; and

on page 47, line 7, by replacing "be" with "not exceed".

With these changes, Senate Bill 229 will have my approval. I respectfully request your concurrence.

Sincerely,
 ROD R. BLAGOJEVICH
 Governor

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Shipley, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House of Representatives in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:

HOUSE BILL 921

A bill for AN ACT concerning State government.

Together with the attached amendments thereto (which amendments have been printed by the Senate), in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL NO. 921

Senate Amendment No. 2 to HOUSE BILL NO. 921

Passed the Senate, as amended, October 11, 2007.

Deborah Shipley, Secretary of the Senate

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 921 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Recreational Trails of Illinois Act is amended by changing Section 15 as follows:

(20 ILCS 862/15)

Sec. 15. Off-Highway Vehicle Trails Fund.

(a) The Off-Highway Vehicle Trails Fund is created as a special fund in the ~~the~~ State treasury. Money from federal, State, and private sources may be deposited into the Fund. Fines assessed by the Department of Natural Resources for citations issued to off-highway vehicle operators shall be deposited into the Fund. All interest accrued on the Fund shall be deposited into the Fund.

(b) All money in the Fund shall be used, subject to appropriation, by the Department for the following purposes:

(1) Grants for construction of off-highway vehicle recreational trails on county, municipal, other units of local government, or private lands where a recreational need for the construction is shown.

(2) Grants for maintenance and construction of off-highway vehicle recreational trails on federal lands, where permitted by law.

(3) Grants for development of off-highway vehicle trail-side facilities in accordance with criteria approved by the National Recreational Trails Advisory Committee.

(4) Grants for acquisition of property from willing sellers for off-highway vehicle recreational trails when the objective of a trail cannot be accomplished by other means.

(5) Grants for development of urban off-highway vehicle trail linkages near homes and workplaces.

(6) Grants for maintenance of existing off-highway vehicle recreational trails, including the grooming and maintenance of trails across snow.

(7) Grants for restoration of areas damaged by usage of off-highway vehicle recreational trails and back country terrain.

(8) Grants for provision of features that facilitate the access and use of off-highway vehicle trails by persons with disabilities.

(9) Grants for acquisition of easements for off-highway vehicle trails or for trail corridors.

(10) Grants for a rider education and safety program.

(11) Administration, enforcement, planning, and implementation of this Act and Sections 11-1426 and 11-1427 of the Illinois Vehicle Code.

Of the money used from the Fund for the purposes set forth in this subsection, at least 92% shall be allocated for motorized recreation and not more than 8% shall be used by the Department for administration, enforcement, planning, and implementation of this Act or diverted from the Fund. The

Department shall establish, by rule, measures to verify that recipients of money from the Fund comply with the specified conditions for the use of the money.

(c) The Department may not use the money from the Fund for the following purposes:

(1) Condemnation of any kind of interest in property.

(2) Construction of any recreational trail on National Forest System land for motorized uses unless those lands have been allocated for uses other than wilderness by an approved forest land and resource management plan or have been released to uses other than wilderness by an Act of Congress, and the construction is otherwise consistent with the management direction in the approved land and resource management plan.

(3) Construction of motorized recreational trails on Department owned or managed land.

(d) The Department shall establish a program to administer grants from the Fund to units of local government, not-for-profit organizations, and other groups to operate, maintain, and acquire land for off-highway vehicle parks that are open and accessible to the public.

(Source: P.A. 93-1050, eff. 11-16-04.)".

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend House Bill 921 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Illinois Public Aid Code is amended by changing Section 5C-2 as follows:

(305 ILCS 5/5C-2) (from Ch. 23, par. 5C-2)

Sec. 5C-2. Assessment; no local authorization to tax.

(a) For the privilege of engaging in the occupation of developmentally disabled care provider, an assessment is imposed upon each developmentally disabled care provider in an amount equal to 6%, or the maximum allowed under federal regulation, whichever is less, of its adjusted gross developmentally disabled care revenue for the prior State fiscal year. Notwithstanding any provision of any other Act to the contrary, this assessment shall be construed as a tax, but may not be added to the charges of an individual's nursing home care that is paid for in whole, or in part, by a federal, State, or combined federal-state medical care program, except those individuals receiving Medicare Part B benefits solely.

(b) Nothing in this amendatory Act of 1995 shall be construed to authorize any home rule unit or other unit of local government to license for revenue or impose a tax or assessment upon a developmentally disabled care provider or the occupation of developmentally disabled care provider, or a tax or assessment measured by the income or earnings of a developmentally disabled care provider.

(Source: P.A. 88-88; 89-21, eff. 7-1-95.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

The foregoing message from the Senate reporting Senate Amendments numbered 1 and 2 to HOUSE BILL 921 were placed on the Calendar on the order of Concurrence.

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Shipley, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House of Representatives in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:

HOUSE BILL 551

A bill for AN ACT concerning State government.

Together with the attached amendments thereto (which amendments have been printed by the Senate), in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL NO. 551

Senate Amendment No. 2 to HOUSE BILL NO. 551

Passed the Senate, as amended, October 11, 2007.

Deborah Shipley, Secretary of the Senate

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 551 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Children and Family Services Act is amended by changing Section 1.1 as follows:

(20 ILCS 505/1.1) (from Ch. 23, par. 5001.1)

Sec. 1.1. This Act shall be known ~~and~~ and may be cited as the Children and Family Services Act. (Source: P.A. 86-820.)".

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend House Bill 551, AS AMENDED, by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Veterans' Health Insurance Program Act is amended by changing Section 85 as follows: (330 ILCS 125/85)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 85. Repeal. This Act is repealed on January 1, 2012 ~~2008~~.

(Source: P.A. 94-816, eff. 5-30-06.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

The foregoing message from the Senate reporting Senate Amendments numbered 1 and 2 to HOUSE BILL 551 were placed on the Calendar on the order of Concurrence.

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Shipley, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House of Representatives in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:

HOUSE BILL 1284

A bill for AN ACT concerning regulation.

Together with the attached amendment thereto (which amendment has been printed by the Senate), in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL NO. 1284

Passed the Senate, as amended, October 11, 2007.

Deborah Shipley, Secretary of the Senate

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 1284 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Regulatory Sunset Act is amended by changing Section 4.18 and by adding Section 4.28 as follows:

(5 ILCS 80/4.18)

Sec. 4.18. Acts repealed January 1, 2008 and December 31, 2008.

(a) The following Acts are repealed on January 1, 2008:

The Acupuncture Practice Act.

The Clinical Social Work and Social Work Practice Act.

~~The Home Medical Equipment and Services Provider License Act.~~

The Nursing and Advanced Practice Nursing Act.

The Illinois Speech-Language Pathology and Audiology Practice Act.

~~The Marriage and Family Therapy Licensing Act.~~

~~The Nursing Home Administrators Licensing and Disciplinary Act.~~

The Pharmacy Practice Act of 1987.

~~The Physician Assistant Practice Act of 1987.~~

The Podiatric Medical Practice Act of 1987.

The Structural Pest Control Act.

(b) The following Acts are repealed on December 31, 2008:

The Medical Practice Act of 1987.

The Environmental Health Practitioner Licensing Act.

(Source: P.A. 94-754, eff. 5-10-06; 94-1075, eff. 12-29-06; 94-1085, eff. 1-19-07; revised 1-22-07.)

(5 ILCS 80/4.28 new)

Sec. 4.28. Acts repealed on January 1, 2018. The following Acts are repealed on January 1, 2018:

The Home Medical Equipment and Services Provider License Act.

The Marriage and Family Therapy Licensing Act.

The Nursing Home Administrators Licensing and Disciplinary Act.

The Physician Assistant Practice Act of 1987.

Section 10. The Home Medical Equipment and Services Provider License Act is amended by changing Sections 10, 20, 25, 65, 75, 80, 85, 90, 95, 110, 115, 120, 125, 130, 135, and 145 as follows:

(225 ILCS 51/10)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 10. Definitions. As used in this Act:

- (1) "Department" means the Department of Financial and Professional Regulation.
- (2) "Secretary" ~~"Director"~~ means the Secretary ~~Director~~ of Financial and Professional Regulation.
- (3) "Board" means the Home Medical Equipment and Services Board.
- (4) "Home medical equipment and services provider" or "provider" means a legal entity, as defined by State law, engaged in the business of providing home medical equipment and services, whether directly or through a contractual arrangement, to an unrelated sick or disabled individual where that individual resides.
- (5) "Home medical equipment and services" means the delivery, installation, maintenance, replacement, or instruction in the use of medical equipment used by a sick or disabled individual to allow the individual to be maintained in his or her residence.
- (6) "Home medical equipment" means technologically sophisticated medical devices, apparatuses, machines, or other similar articles bearing a label that states "Caution: federal law requires dispensing by or on the order of a physician.", which are usable in a home care setting, including but not limited to:
 - (A) oxygen and oxygen delivery systems;
 - (B) ventilators;
 - (C) respiratory disease management devices, excluding compressor driven nebulizers;
 - (D) wheelchair seating systems;
 - (E) apnea monitors;
 - (F) transcutaneous electrical nerve stimulator (TENS) units;
 - (G) low air-loss cutaneous pressure management devices;
 - (H) sequential compression devices;
 - (I) neonatal home phototherapy devices;
 - (J) enteral feeding pumps; and
 - (K) other similar equipment as defined by the Board.

"Home medical equipment" also includes hospital beds and electronic and computer-driven wheelchairs, excluding scooters.

(7) "Address of record" means the designated address recorded by the Department in the applicant's or licensee's application file or license file maintained by the Department's licensure maintenance unit. It is the duty of the applicant or licensee to inform the Department of any change of address, and such changes must be made either through the Department's website or by contacting the Department's licensure maintenance unit.

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

(225 ILCS 51/20)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 20. Powers and duties of the Department.

(a) The Department shall exercise the powers and duties prescribed by the Civil Administrative Code of Illinois for the administration of licensure Acts and shall exercise other powers and duties necessary for effectuating the purposes of this Act.

(b) The Department may adopt rules to administer and enforce this Act, including but not limited to fees for original licensure and renewal and restoration of licenses, and may prescribe forms to be issued to implement this Act. At a minimum, the rules adopted by the Department shall include standards and criteria for licensure and for professional conduct and discipline. The Department shall consult with the Board in adopting rules. Notice of proposed rulemaking shall be transmitted to the Board, and the Department shall review the Board's response and any recommendations made in the response. The Department shall notify the Board in writing with proper explanation of deviations from the Board's recommendations and response.

(c) The Department may at any time seek the advice and expert knowledge of the Board on any matter relating to the administration of this Act.

(d) ~~(Blank). The Department shall issue a quarterly report to the Board of the status of all complaints related to the profession and filed with the Department.~~

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

(225 ILCS 51/25)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 25. Home Medical Equipment and Services Board. The ~~Secretary~~ Director shall appoint a Home Medical Equipment and Services Board, in consultation with a state association representing the home medical equipment and services industry, to serve in an advisory capacity to the ~~Secretary~~ Director. The Board shall consist of 7 members. Four members shall be home medical equipment and services provider representatives, ~~2 of whom represent businesses grossing less than \$500,000 per year in revenues, 2 of whom represent businesses grossing \$500,000 or more per year in revenues, and~~ at least one of whom shall also be a pharmacy-based provider. The 3 remaining members shall include one home care clinical specialist, one respiratory care practitioner, and one public member ~~consumer of home medical equipment and services~~.

Members shall serve 4 year terms and until their successors are appointed and qualified, ~~except that of the initial appointments, the consumer member shall be appointed to serve for one year, 2 members shall be appointed to serve for 2 years, 3 members shall be appointed to serve for 3 years, and one member who is a home medical equipment and services provider representative shall be appointed to serve for 4 years, and until their successors are appointed and qualified.~~ No member shall be reappointed to the Board for a term that would cause continuous service on the Board to exceed 8 years. Appointments to fill vacancies shall be made in the same manner as original appointments, for the unexpired portion of the vacated term.

The home medical equipment and services provider representatives appointed to the Board shall have engaged in the provision of home medical equipment and services or related home care services for at least 3 years prior to their appointment, shall be currently engaged in providing home medical equipment and services in the State of Illinois, and must have no record of convictions related to fraud or abuse under either State or federal law.

The membership of the Board should reasonably reflect representation from the geographic areas in this State.

The Board shall annually elect one of its members as chairperson and vice chairperson.

Members of the Board shall receive as compensation a reasonable sum as determined by the ~~Secretary~~ Director for each day actually engaged in the duties of the office, and shall be reimbursed for authorized expenses incurred in performing the duties of the office.

The ~~Secretary~~ Director may terminate the appointment of any member for cause which in the opinion of the ~~Secretary~~ Director reasonably justifies the termination.

~~Through consultation with members of a state association for the home medical equipment and services industry, the Board may recommend to the Department rules that specify the medical equipment to be included under this Act, that set standards for the licensure, professional conduct, and discipline of entities that provide home medical equipment and services, and that govern the safety and quality of home medical equipment and services. The Director shall consider the recommendations of the Board.~~

Members of the Board shall be immune from suit in an action based upon any disciplinary proceedings or other activities performed in good faith as members of the Board.

A majority of Board members currently appointed shall constitute a quorum. A vacancy in the membership of the Board shall not impair the rights of a quorum to exercise the rights and perform all of the duties of the Board.

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

(225 ILCS 51/65)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 65. Fees; returned checks. An entity who delivers a check or other payment to the Department that is returned to the Department unpaid by the financial institution upon which it is drawn shall pay to the Department, in addition to the amount already owed to the Department, a fine of \$50. The fines imposed by this Section are in addition to any other discipline provided under this Act for unlicensed practice or practice on a nonrenewed license. The Department shall notify the entity that fees and fines shall be paid to the Department by certified check or money order within 30 calendar days of the notification. If, after the expiration of 30 days from the date of the notification, the entity has failed to submit the necessary remittance, the Department shall automatically terminate the license or deny the application without a hearing. If the entity seeks a license after termination or denial, the entity shall apply to the Department for restoration or issuance of the license and pay all fees and fines owed to the Department. The Department may establish a fee for the processing of an application for restoration of a license to pay all expenses of processing that application. The ~~Secretary~~ Director may waive the fines due under this Section in individual

cases where the ~~Secretary~~ Director finds that the fines would be unreasonable or unnecessarily burdensome. (Source: P.A. 92-146, eff. 1-1-02.)

(225 ILCS 51/75)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 75. Refused issuance, suspension, or revocation of license. The Department may refuse to issue, renew, or restore a license, or may revoke, suspend, place on probation, reprimand, impose a fine not to exceed ~~\$10,000~~ \$1,000 for each violation, or take other disciplinary or non-disciplinary action as the Department may deem proper with regard to a licensee for any one or combination of the following reasons:

- (1) Making a material misstatement in furnishing information to the Department.
- (2) ~~Violation~~ Negligent or intentional disregard of this Act or its rules.
- (3) Conviction of or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to any a crime that is a felony under the laws of the United States or any state or territory thereof ~~that is a felony~~ or a misdemeanor, an essential element of which is dishonesty; ~~or conviction of a crime that is directly related to the practice of the profession provision of home medical equipment and services.~~
- (4) Making a misrepresentation to obtain licensure or to violate a provision of this Act.
- (5) Gross negligence in practice under this Act.
- (6) Engaging in a pattern of practice or other behavior that demonstrates incapacity or incompetence to practice under this Act.
- (7) Aiding, assisting, or willingly permitting another person in violating any provision of this Act or its rules.
- (8) Failing, within ~~30~~ 60 days, to provide information in response to a written request made by the Department.
- (9) Engaging in dishonorable, unethical, or unprofessional conduct of a character likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public.
- (10) Discipline by another state, District of Columbia, territory, or foreign nation, if at least one of the grounds for the discipline is the same or substantially equivalent to one set forth in this Act.
- (11) Directly or indirectly giving to or receiving from any person, firm, corporation, partnership, or association any fee, commission, rebate, or other form of compensation for any services not actually or personally rendered.
- (12) A finding that the licensee, after having its license placed on probationary status, has violated the terms of probation.
- (13) Willfully making or filing false records or reports in the course of providing home medical equipment and services, including but not limited to false records or reports filed with State agencies or departments.
- (14) Solicitation of business services, other than according to permitted advertising.
- (15) The use of any words, abbreviations, figures, or letters with the intention of indicating practice as a home medical equipment and services provider without a license issued under this Act.
- (16) Failure to file a return, or to pay the tax, penalty, or interest shown in a filed return, or to pay any final assessment of tax, penalty, or interest, as required by any tax Act administered by the Department of Revenue, until such time as the requirements of any such tax Act are satisfied.
- (17) Failure to comply with federal or State laws and regulations concerning home medical equipment and services providers.
- (18) Solicitation of professional services using false or misleading advertising.
- (19) Failure to display a license in accordance with Section 45.
- (20) Habitual or excessive use or addiction to alcohol, narcotics, stimulants, or any other chemical agent or drug that results in the inability to practice with reasonable judgment, skill, or safety.
- (21) Physical illness, mental illness, or disability, including without limitation deterioration through the aging process and loss of motor skill, that results in the inability to practice the profession with reasonable judgment, skill, or safety.

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

(225 ILCS 51/80)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 80. Cease and desist order.

(a) If any entity violates a provision of this Act, the Secretary ~~Director~~ may, in the name of the People of the State of Illinois, through the Attorney General of the State of Illinois, petition for an order enjoining the violation or for an order enforcing compliance with this Act. Upon the filing of a verified petition in court, the court may issue a temporary restraining order, without notice or bond, and may preliminarily and permanently enjoin the violation, and if it is established that the entity has violated or is violating the injunction, the court may punish the offender for contempt of court. Proceedings under this Section shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, all other remedies and penalties provided by this Act.

(b) If an entity holds itself out as a provider of home medical equipment and services without a license issued under this Act, an interested party or any person injured thereby, in addition to the Secretary ~~Director~~, may petition for relief as provided in subsection (a) of this Section.

(c) Whenever in the opinion of the Department an entity violates a provision of this Act, the Department may issue a rule to show cause why an order to cease and desist should not be entered against the entity. The rule shall clearly set forth the grounds relied upon by the Department and shall provide a period of 7 days from the date of the rule to file an answer to the satisfaction of the Department. Failure to answer to the satisfaction of the Department shall cause an order to cease and desist to be issued immediately.

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

(225 ILCS 51/85)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 85. Unlicensed practice; civil penalty.

(a) An entity who practices, offers to practice, attempts to practice, or holds itself out to practice as a home medical equipment and services provider without being licensed under this Act shall, in addition to any other penalty provided by law, pay a civil penalty to the Department in an amount not to exceed \$10,000 ~~\$5,000~~ for each offense as determined by the Department. The civil penalty shall be assessed by the Department after a hearing is held in accordance with the provisions set forth in this Act regarding the provision of a hearing for the discipline of a licensee. The civil penalty shall be paid within 60 days after the effective date of the order imposing the civil penalty. The order shall constitute a judgment and may be filed and executed in the same manner as any judgment from any court of record.

(b) The Department may investigate any unlicensed activity.

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

(225 ILCS 51/90)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 90. ~~Inspections~~ Mandatory inspections. The Department ~~may~~ shall inspect a licensee for compliance with the requirements of this Act ~~and within 3 years after the date of initial licensure and at least once every 3 years thereafter, unless the licensee can demonstrate proof of renewal of accreditation with a recognized national accrediting body. The Department shall~~ conduct random inspections upon renewal of a license, for cause or as necessary to assure the integrity and effectiveness of the licensing process. ~~Upon failure to pass inspection, a provider's license shall be suspended or denied as applicable, pending review by the Board. The Department may authorize qualified individuals to conduct inspections. The Department shall set by rule, and pay to an inspector, a fee for each inspection. An entity that fails to pass an inspection is subject to penalties under Section 80. Upon notice of failure to pass an inspection, a provider shall have 30 days to appeal the inspection results. On appeal, a provider shall have the right to an inspection review or to a new inspection in accordance with procedures adopted by the Department. A home medical equipment and services provider licensed within 2 years after the effective date of this Act is exempt from the inspection requirements of this Section during that 2-year period.~~

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

(225 ILCS 51/95)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 95. Investigations; notice and hearing.

(a) The Department may investigate the actions of an applicant or of an entity holding or claiming to hold a license.

(b) The Department shall, before refusing to issue or renew a license or disciplining a licensee, at least 30 days prior to the date set for the hearing, notify in writing the applicant or licensee of the nature of the charges and that a hearing will be held on the date designated. The Department shall direct the applicant or licensee to file a written answer to the Board under oath within 20 days after the service of the notice and inform the applicant or licensee that failure to file an answer will result in default being taken against the applicant or licensee and that the license may be suspended, revoked, placed on probationary status, or

other disciplinary action may be taken, including limiting the scope, nature, or extent of business, as the Secretary Director may deem proper. Written notice may be served by personal delivery or certified or registered mail to the applicant or licensee respondent at his or her ~~the~~ address of record ~~the entity's last notification to the Department~~. If the entity fails to file an answer after receiving notice, the entity's license may, in the discretion of the Department, be suspended, revoked, or placed on probationary status, or the Department may take whatever disciplinary action it deems proper, including limiting the scope, nature, or extent of the entity's business, or imposing a fine, without a hearing, if the act or acts charged constitute sufficient grounds for such action under this Act. At the time and place fixed in the notice, the Board shall proceed to hear the charges, and the parties or their counsel shall be accorded ample opportunity to present such statements, testimony, evidence, and argument as may be pertinent to the charges or to their defense. The Board may continue a hearing from time to time.

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

(225 ILCS 51/110)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 110. Findings and recommendations. At the conclusion of the hearing the Board shall present to the Secretary Director a written report of its findings and recommendations. The report shall contain a finding of whether or not the accused entity violated this Act or failed to comply with the conditions required in this Act. The Board shall specify the nature of the violation or failure to comply, and shall make its recommendations to the Secretary Director.

The report of findings and recommendations of the Board ~~may shall~~ be the basis for the Department's order of refusal or for the granting of licensure unless the Secretary Director shall determine that the Board's report is contrary to the manifest weight of the evidence, in which case the Secretary Director may issue an order in contravention of the Board's report. The finding is not admissible in evidence against the entity in a criminal prosecution brought for the violation of this Act, but the hearing and finding are not a bar to a criminal prosecution brought for the violation of this Act.

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

(225 ILCS 51/115)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 115. Rehearing on motion. In a case involving the refusal to issue or renew a license or the discipline of a licensee, a copy of the Board's report shall be served upon the respondent by the Department, either personally or as provided in this Act for the service of the notice of hearing. Within 20 days after such service, the respondent may present to the Department a motion in writing for a rehearing, which shall specify the particular grounds for the rehearing. If no motion for rehearing is filed, then upon the expiration of the time specified for filing the motion, or if a motion for rehearing is denied, then upon such denial the Secretary Director may enter an order in accordance with recommendations of the Board except as provided in Section 120 of this Act. ~~If the respondent shall order from the reporting service and pay for a transcript of the record with the time for filing a motion for rehearing, the 20 day period within which such a motion may be filed shall commence upon the delivery of the transcript to the respondent.~~

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

(225 ILCS 51/120)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 120. Rehearing on order of Secretary Director. Whenever the Secretary Director is satisfied that substantial justice has not been done in the revocation or suspension of a license or refusal to issue or renew a license, the Secretary Director may order a rehearing by the same or another Board.

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

(225 ILCS 51/125)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 125. Hearing officer. The Secretary Director has the authority to appoint an attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of Illinois to serve as the hearing officer in an action for refusal to issue or renew a license, or for the discipline of a licensee. The Secretary Director shall notify the Board of an appointment. The hearing officer shall have full authority to conduct the hearing. The hearing officer shall report his or her findings and recommendations to the Board and the Secretary Director. The Board shall have 60 days from receipt of the report to review the report of the hearing officer and present its findings of fact, conclusions of law and recommendation to the Secretary Director. If the Board fails to present its report within the 60 day period, the respondent may request in writing a direct appeal to the Secretary, in which case the Secretary shall, within 7 calendar days after the request, issue an order directing the Board to issue its findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations to the Secretary within 30 calendar

days after such order. If the Board fails to issue its findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations within that time frame to the Secretary after the entry of such order, the Secretary shall, within 30 calendar days thereafter, issue an order based upon the report of the hearing officer and the record of the proceedings or issue an order remanding the matter back to the hearing officer for additional proceedings in accordance with the order. If (i) a direct appeal is requested, (ii) the Board fails to issue its findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations within the 30-day mandate from the Secretary or the Secretary fails to order the Board to do so, and (iii) the Secretary fails to issue an order within 30 calendar days thereafter, then the hearing officer's report is deemed accepted and a final decision of the Secretary. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, if the Secretary, upon review, determines that substantial justice has not been done in the revocation, suspension, or refusal to issue or renew a license or other disciplinary action taken as the result of the entry of the hearing officer's report, the Secretary may order a rehearing by the same or other examiners the Director shall issue an order based on the report of the hearing officer. If the ~~Secretary~~ Director determines that the Board's report is contrary to the manifest weight of the evidence, he or she may issue an order in contravention of the Board's report.

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

(225 ILCS 51/130)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 130. Order or certified copy. An order or a certified copy of an order, over the seal of the Department and purporting to be signed by the ~~Secretary~~ Director, shall be prima facie proof that:

- (1) the signature is the genuine signature of the ~~Secretary~~ Director;
- (2) the ~~Secretary~~ Director is duly appointed and qualified; and
- (3) the Board and its members are qualified to act. This proof may be rebutted.

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

(225 ILCS 51/135)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 135. Restoration of license. At any time after the suspension or revocation of a license, the Department may restore the license to the accused entity upon the written recommendation of the Board unless, after an investigation and a hearing, the Board determines that restoration is not in the public interest. Restoration under this Section requires the filing of all applications and payment of all fees required by the Department.

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

(225 ILCS 51/145)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 145. Temporary suspension of a license. The ~~Secretary~~ Director may temporarily suspend the license of a home medical equipment and services provider without a hearing, simultaneously with the institution of proceedings for a hearing provided for in Section 95 of this Act, if the ~~Secretary~~ Director finds that evidence in his or her possession indicates that the home medical equipment and services provider's continuation in business would constitute an imminent danger to the public. If the ~~Secretary~~ Director temporarily suspends the license of a home medical equipment and services provider without a hearing, a hearing by the Board must be held within 30 days of the suspension.

(Source: P.A. 90-532, eff. 11-14-97.)

Section 15. The Marriage and Family Therapy Licensing Act is amended by changing Sections 10, 25, 30, 60, 85, 90, 95, 105, 110, 115, 120, 125, 130, and 145 and by adding Section 91 as follows:

(225 ILCS 55/10) (from Ch. 111, par. 8351-10)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 10. Definitions. As used in this Act:

"Address of record" means the designated address recorded by the Department in the applicant's or licensee's application file or license file maintained by the Department's licensure maintenance unit. It is the duty of the applicant or licensee to inform the Department of any change of address, and such changes must be made either through the Department's website or by contacting the Department's licensure maintenance unit.

"Advertise" means, but is not limited to, issuing or causing to be distributed any card, sign or device to any person; or causing, permitting or allowing any sign or marking on or in any building, structure, newspaper, magazine or directory, or on radio or television; or advertising by any other means designed to secure public attention.

"Approved program" means an approved comprehensive program of study in marriage and family therapy in a regionally accredited educational institution approved by the Department for the training of

marriage and family therapists.

"Associate licensed marriage and family therapist" means a person to whom an associate marriage and family therapist license has been issued under this Act.

"Board" means the Illinois Marriage and Family Therapy Licensing and Disciplinary Board.

"Department" means the Department of Financial and Professional Regulation.

~~"Director" means the Director of the Department of Professional Regulation.~~

"License" means that which is required to practice marriage and family therapy under this Act, the qualifications for which include specific education, acceptable experience and examination requirements.

"Licensed marriage and family therapist" means a person to whom a marriage and family therapist license has been issued under this Act.

"Marriage and family therapy" means the evaluation and treatment of mental and emotional problems within the context of human relationships. Marriage and family therapy involves the use of psychotherapeutic methods to ameliorate interpersonal and intrapersonal conflict and to modify perceptions, beliefs and behavior in areas of human life that include, but are not limited to, premarriage, marriage, sexuality, family, divorce adjustment, and parenting.

"Person" means any individual, firm, corporation, partnership, organization, or body politic.

"Practice of marriage and family therapy" means the rendering of marriage and family therapy services to individuals, couples, and families as defined in this Section, either singly or in groups, whether the services are offered directly to the general public or through organizations, either public or private, for a fee, monetary or otherwise.

"Secretary" means the Secretary of Financial and Professional Regulation.

"Title or description" means to hold oneself out as a licensed marriage and family therapist or an associate licensed marriage and family therapist to the public by means of stating on signs, mailboxes, address plates, stationery, announcements, calling cards or other instruments of professional identification.

(Source: P.A. 91-362, eff. 1-1-00.)

(225 ILCS 55/25) (from Ch. 111, par. 8351-25)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 25. Marriage and Family Therapy Licensing and Disciplinary Board.

(a) There is established within the Department the Marriage and Family Therapy Licensing and Disciplinary Board to be appointed by the Secretary ~~Director~~. The Board shall be composed of 7 persons who shall serve in an advisory capacity to the Secretary ~~Director~~. The Board shall elect a chairperson and a vice chairperson.

(b) In appointing members of the Board, the Secretary ~~Director~~ shall give due consideration to recommendations by members of the profession of marriage and family therapy and by the statewide organizations solely representing the interests of marriage and family therapists.

(c) Five members of the Board shall be marriage and family therapists who have been in active practice for at least 5 years immediately preceding their appointment, or engaged in the education and training of masters, doctoral, or post-doctoral students of marriage and family therapy, or engaged in marriage and family therapy research. Each marriage or family therapy teacher or researcher shall have spent the majority of the time devoted to the study or research of marriage and family therapy during the 2 years immediately preceding his or her appointment to the Board. The appointees shall be licensed under this Act.

(d) Two members shall be representatives of the general public who have no direct affiliation or work experience with the practice of marriage and family therapy and who clearly represent consumer interests.

(e) Board members shall be appointed for terms of 4 years each, except that any person chosen to fill a vacancy shall be appointed only for the unexpired term of the Board member whom he or she shall succeed. Upon the expiration of this term of office, a Board member shall continue to serve until a successor is appointed and qualified. No member shall be reappointed to the Board for a term that would cause continuous service on the Board to be longer than 8 years.

(f) The membership of the Board shall reasonably reflect representation from the various geographic areas of the State.

(g) Members of the Board shall be immune from suit in any action based upon any disciplinary proceedings or other activities performed in good faith as members of the Board.

(h) The Secretary ~~Director~~ may remove any member of the Board for any cause that, in the opinion of the Secretary ~~Director~~, reasonably justifies termination.

(i) The Secretary ~~Director~~ may consider the recommendations of the Board on questions of standards of professional conduct, discipline, and qualification of candidates or licensees under this Act.

(j) The members of the Board shall be reimbursed for all legitimate, necessary, and authorized expenses.

(k) A majority of the Board members currently appointed shall constitute a quorum. A vacancy in the membership of the Board shall not impair the right of a quorum to exercise all the rights and perform all the duties of the Board.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 55/30) (from Ch. 111, par. 8351-30)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 30. Application.

(a) Applications for original licensure shall be made to the Department in writing on forms prescribed by the Department and shall be accompanied by the appropriate documentation and the required fee, which fee is nonrefundable. Any application shall require such information as, in the judgment of the Department, will enable the Department to pass on the qualifications of the applicant for licensing.

(b) Applicants have 3 years from the date of application to complete the application process. If the application has not been completed within 3 years, the application shall be denied, the fee shall be forfeited, and the applicant must reapply and meet the requirements in effect at the time of reapplication.

(c) A license shall not be denied to an applicant because of the applicant's race, religion, creed, national origin, political beliefs or activities, age, sex, sexual orientation, or physical disability that does not affect a person's ability to practice with reasonable judgment, skill, or safety ~~impairment~~.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 55/60) (from Ch. 111, par. 8351-60)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 60. Payments; penalty for insufficient funds. Any person who delivers a check or other payment to the Department that is returned to the Department unpaid by the financial institution upon which it is drawn shall pay to the Department, in addition to the amount already owed to the Department, a fine of \$50. The fines imposed by this Section are in addition to any other discipline provided under this Act prohibiting unlicensed practice or practice on a nonrenewed license. The Department shall notify the person that payment of fees and fines shall be paid to the Department by certified check or money order within 30 calendar days after notification. If, after the expiration of 30 days from the date of the notification, the person has failed to submit the necessary remittance, the Department shall automatically terminate the license or deny the application, without hearing. If, after termination or denial, the person seeks a license, he or she shall apply to the Department for restoration or issuance of the license and pay all fees and fines due to the Department. The Department may establish a fee for the processing of an application for restoration of a license to pay all expenses of processing this application. The ~~Secretary~~ Director may waive the fines due under this Section in individual cases where the ~~Secretary~~ Director finds that the fines would be unreasonable or unnecessarily burdensome.

(Source: P.A. 92-146, eff. 1-1-02.)

(225 ILCS 55/85) (from Ch. 111, par. 8351-85)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 85. Refusal, revocation, or suspension.

(a) The Department may refuse to issue or renew, or may revoke a license, or may suspend, place on probation, fine, or take any disciplinary or non-disciplinary action as the Department may deem proper, including fines not to exceed \$10,000 ~~\$1000~~ for each violation, with regard to any licensee for any one or combination of the following causes:

(1) Material misstatement in furnishing information to the Department.

(2) Violations of this Act or its rules.

(3) Conviction of or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to any crime that is a felony under the laws of the United States or any state or territory thereof ~~or that is (i) a felony, (ii) a misdemeanor, of which an essential element of which is dishonesty, or (iii) a crime that is directly related to the practice of the profession.~~

(4) Making any misrepresentation for the purpose of obtaining a license or violating any provision of this Act or its rules.

(5) Professional incompetence ~~or gross negligence~~.

(6) Gross negligence ~~Malpractice~~.

(7) Aiding or assisting another person in violating any provision of this Act or its rules.

(8) Failing, within 30 ~~60~~ days, to provide information in response to a written request made by the Department.

(9) Engaging in dishonorable, unethical, or unprofessional conduct of a character likely to deceive, defraud or harm the public as defined by the rules of the Department, or violating the rules of professional conduct adopted by the Board and published by the Department.

(10) Habitual or excessive use or addiction to alcohol, narcotics, stimulants, or any other chemical agent or drug that results in the inability to practice with reasonable judgment, skill, or safety.

(11) Discipline by another state, territory, or country if at least one of the grounds for the discipline is the same or substantially equivalent to those set forth in this Act.

(12) Directly or indirectly giving to or receiving from any person, firm, corporation, partnership or association any fee, commission, rebate, or other form of compensation for any professional services not actually or personally rendered.

(13) A finding by the Department that the licensee, after having his or her license placed on probationary status, has violated the terms of probation.

(14) Abandonment of a patient without cause.

(15) Willfully making or filing false records or reports relating to a licensee's practice, including but not limited to false records filed with State agencies or departments.

(16) Wilfully failing to report an instance of suspected child abuse or neglect as required by the Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act.

(17) Being named as a perpetrator in an indicated report by the Department of Children and Family Services under the Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act and upon proof by clear and convincing evidence that the licensee has caused a child to be an abused child or neglected child as defined in the Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act.

(18) Physical illness or mental illness or impairment ~~disability~~, including , but not limited to, deterioration through the aging process ~~;~~ or loss of motor skill abilities and skills that results in the inability to practice the profession with reasonable judgment, skill, or safety.

(19) Solicitation of professional services by using false or misleading advertising.

(20) A finding that licensure has been applied for or obtained by fraudulent means.

(21) Practicing or attempting to practice under a name other than the full name as shown on the license or any other legally authorized name.

(22) Gross overcharging for professional services including filing statements for collection of fees or moneys for which services are not rendered.

(b) The Department shall deny any application for a license, ~~without hearing,~~ or renewal , without hearing, under this Act to any person who has defaulted on an educational loan guaranteed by the Illinois Student Assistance Commission; however, the Department may issue a license or renewal if the person in default has established a satisfactory repayment record as determined by the Illinois Student Assistance Commission.

(c) The determination by a circuit court that a licensee is subject to involuntary admission or judicial admission, as provided in the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Code, operates as an automatic suspension. The suspension will terminate only upon a finding by a court that the patient is no longer subject to involuntary admission or judicial admission and the issuance of an order so finding and discharging the patient, and upon the recommendation of the Board to the Secretary ~~Director~~ that the licensee be allowed to resume his or her practice as a licensed marriage and family therapist or an associate marriage and family therapist.

(d) The Department may refuse to issue or may suspend the license of any person who fails to file a return, pay the tax, penalty, or interest shown in a filed return or pay any final assessment of tax, penalty, or interest, as required by any tax Act administered by the Illinois Department of Revenue, until the time the requirements of the tax Act are satisfied.

(e) In enforcing this Section, the Department or Board upon a showing of a possible violation may compel an individual licensed to practice under this Act, or who has applied for licensure under this Act, to submit to a mental or physical examination, or both, as required by and at the expense of the Department. The Department or Board may order the examining physician to present testimony concerning the mental or physical examination of the licensee or applicant. No information shall be excluded by reason of any common law or statutory privilege relating to communications between the licensee or applicant and the examining physician. The examining physicians shall be specifically designated by the Board or Department. The individual to be examined may have, at his or her own expense, another physician of his or her choice present during all aspects of this examination. Failure of an individual to submit to a mental

or physical examination, when directed, shall be grounds for suspension of his or her license until the individual submits to the examination if the Department finds, after notice and hearing, that the refusal to submit to the examination was without reasonable cause.

If the Department or Board finds an individual unable to practice because of the reasons set forth in this Section, the Department or Board may require that individual to submit to care, counseling, or treatment by physicians approved or designated by the Department or Board, as a condition, term, or restriction for continued, reinstated, or renewed licensure to practice; or, in lieu of care, counseling, or treatment, the Department may file, or the Board may recommend to the Department to file, a complaint to immediately suspend, revoke, or otherwise discipline the license of the individual. An individual whose license was granted, continued, reinstated, renewed, disciplined or supervised subject to such terms, conditions, or restrictions, and who fails to comply with such terms, conditions, or restrictions, shall be referred to the ~~Secretary Director~~ for a determination as to whether the individual shall have his or her license suspended immediately, pending a hearing by the Department.

In instances in which the ~~Secretary Director~~ immediately suspends a person's license under this Section, a hearing on that person's license must be convened by the Department within 30 ~~45~~ days after the suspension and completed without appreciable delay. The Department and Board shall have the authority to review the subject individual's record of treatment and counseling regarding the impairment to the extent permitted by applicable federal statutes and regulations safeguarding the confidentiality of medical records.

An individual licensed under this Act and affected under this Section shall be afforded an opportunity to demonstrate to the Department or Board that he or she can resume practice in compliance with acceptable and prevailing standards under the provisions of his or her license.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97; 91-362, eff. 1-1-00.)

(225 ILCS 55/90) (from Ch. 111, par. 8351-90)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 90. Violations; injunctions; cease and desist order.

(a) If any person violates a provision of this Act, the ~~Secretary Director~~ may, in the name of the People of the State of Illinois, through the Attorney General of the State of Illinois, petition for an order enjoining the violation or for an order enforcing compliance with this Act. Upon the filing of a verified petition in court, the court may issue a temporary restraining order, without notice or bond, and may preliminarily and permanently enjoin the violation. If it is established that the person has violated or is violating the injunction, the Court may punish the offender for contempt of court. Proceedings under this Section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, all other remedies and penalties provided by this Act.

(b) If any person practices as a marriage and family therapist or an associate marriage and family therapist or holds himself or herself out as such without having a valid license under this Act, then any licensee, any interested party or any person injured thereby may, in addition to the ~~Secretary Director~~, petition for relief as provided in subsection (a) of this Section.

(c) Whenever in the opinion of the Department any person violates any provision of this Act, the Department may issue a rule to show cause why an order to cease and desist should not be entered against him or her. The rule shall clearly set forth the grounds relied upon by the Department and shall provide a period of 7 days from the date of the rule to file an answer to the satisfaction of the Department. Failure to answer to the satisfaction of the Department shall cause an order to cease and desist to be issued immediately.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97; 91-362, eff. 1-1-00.)

(225 ILCS 55/91 new)

Sec. 91. Unlicensed practice; violation; civil penalty.

(a) Any person who practices, offers to practice, attempts to practice, or holds himself or herself out to practice as a licensed marriage and family therapist without being licensed under this Act shall, in addition to any other penalty provided by law, pay a civil penalty to the Department in an amount not to exceed \$10,000 for each offense, as determined by the Department. The civil penalty shall be assessed by the Department after a hearing is held in accordance with the provisions set forth in this Act regarding the provision of a hearing for the discipline of a licensee.

(b) The Department may investigate any and all unlicensed activity.

(c) The civil penalty shall be paid within 60 days after the effective date of the order imposing the civil penalty. The order shall constitute a judgment and may be filed and execution had thereon in the same manner as any judgment from any court of record.

(225 ILCS 55/95) (from Ch. 111, par. 8351-95)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 95. Investigation; notice and hearing. The Department may investigate the actions or qualifications of any person or persons holding or claiming to hold a license. Before suspending, revoking, placing on probationary status, or taking any other disciplinary action as the Department may deem proper with regard to any license, at least 30 days before the date set for the hearing, the Department shall (i) notify the accused in writing of any charges made and the time and place for a hearing on the charges before the Board, (ii) direct him or her to file a written answer to the charges with the Board under oath within 20 days after the service on him or her of such notice, and (iii) inform him or her that if he or she fails to file an answer, default will be taken against him or her and his or her license may be suspended, revoked, placed on probationary status, or other disciplinary action taken with regard to the license, including limiting the scope, nature, or extent of his or her practice, as the Department may deem proper. In case the person, after receiving notice, fails to file an answer, his or her license may, in the discretion of the Department, be suspended, revoked, placed on probationary status, or the Department may take whatever disciplinary action deemed proper, including limiting the scope, nature, or extent of the person's practice or the imposition of a fine, without a hearing, if the act or acts charged constitute sufficient grounds for such action under this Act. Written ~~This written~~ notice ~~and any notice in the subsequent proceedings~~ may be served by personal delivery ~~to the accused person~~, or by registered or certified mail to the applicant or licensee at his or her last address of record with address last specified by the accused in his last notification ~~to~~ the Department. In case the person fails to file an answer after receiving notice, his or her license may, in the discretion of the Department, be suspended, revoked, or placed on probationary status, or the Department may take whatever disciplinary action deemed proper, including limiting the scope, nature, or extent of the person's practice or the imposition of a fine, without a hearing, if the act or acts charged constitute sufficient grounds for such action under this Act. The written answer shall be served by personal delivery, certified delivery, or certified or registered mail to the Department. At the time and place fixed in the notice, the Department shall proceed to hear the charges and the parties or their counsel shall be accorded ample opportunity to present such statements, testimony, evidence, and argument as may be pertinent to the charges or to the defense thereto. The Department may continue such hearing from time to time. At the discretion of the Secretary ~~Director~~ after having first received the recommendation of the Board, the accused person's license may be suspended or revoked, if the evidence constitutes sufficient grounds for such action under this Act.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97; 90-655, eff. 7-30-98.)

(225 ILCS 55/105) (from Ch. 111, par. 8351-105)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 105. Subpoenas; oaths; attendance of witnesses. The Department has the power to subpoena and to bring before it any person and to take testimony either orally or by deposition, or both, with the same fees and mileage and in the same manner as prescribed in civil cases in the courts of this State.

The Secretary ~~Director~~, the designated hearing officer, and every member of the Board has power to administer oaths to witnesses at any hearing that the Department is authorized to conduct and any other oaths authorized in any Act administered by the Department. Any circuit court may, upon application of the Department or its designee, or of the applicant or licensee against whom proceedings under this Act are pending, enter an order requiring the attendance of witnesses and their testimony, and the production of documents, papers, files, books and records in connection with any hearing or investigation. The court may compel obedience to its order by proceedings for contempt.

(Source: P.A. 87-783; 87-1237.)

(225 ILCS 55/110) (from Ch. 111, par. 8351-110)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 110. Recommendations for disciplinary action. At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board shall present to the Secretary ~~Director~~ a written report of its findings and recommendations. The report shall contain a finding whether or not the accused person violated this Act or failed to comply with the conditions required in this Act. The Board shall specify the nature of the violation or failure to comply, and shall make its recommendations to the Secretary ~~Director~~.

The report of findings and recommendations of the Board shall be the basis for the Department's order for refusal or for the granting of a license, or for any disciplinary action, unless the Secretary ~~Director~~ shall determine that the Board's report is contrary to the manifest weight of the evidence, in which case the Secretary ~~Director~~ may issue an order in contravention of the Board's report. The finding is not admissible in evidence against the person in a criminal prosecution brought for the violation of this Act, but the hearing and finding are not a bar to a criminal prosecution brought for the violation of this Act.

(Source: P.A. 87-783.)

(225 ILCS 55/115) (from Ch. 111, par. 8351-115)
 (Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 115. Rehearing. In any hearing involving disciplinary action against a licensee, a copy of the Board's report shall be served upon the respondent by the Department, either personally or as provided in this Act for the service of the notice of hearing. Within 20 calendar days after service, the respondent may present to the Department a motion in writing for a rehearing that shall specify the particular grounds for rehearing. If no motion for rehearing is filed, then upon the expiration of the time specified for filing a motion, or if a motion for rehearing is denied, then upon denial, the Secretary Director may enter an order in accordance with recommendations of the Board, except as provided in this Act. If the respondent orders from the reporting service, and pays for, a transcript of the record within the time for filing a motion for rehearing, the 20 calendar day period within which a motion may be filed shall commence upon the delivery of the transcript to the respondent.

(Source: P.A. 87-783; 87-1237; 88-45.)

(225 ILCS 55/120) (from Ch. 111, par. 8351-120)
 (Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 120. Hearing by other hearing officer examiner. Whenever the Secretary Director is not satisfied that substantial justice has been done in the revocation, suspension or refusal to issue or renew a license, the Secretary Director may order a rehearing by the same or other hearing officer examiners.

(Source: P.A. 87-783.)

(225 ILCS 55/125) (from Ch. 111, par. 8351-125)
 (Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 125. Appointment of a hearing officer. The Secretary Director has the authority to appoint any attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of Illinois to serve as the hearing officer in any action for refusal to issue or renew a license, or to discipline a licensee. The hearing officer has full authority to conduct the hearing. The hearing officer shall report his findings and recommendations to the Board and the Secretary Director. The Board has 60 calendar days from receipt of the report to review the report of the hearing officer and present its findings of fact, conclusions of law and recommendations to the Secretary Director. If the Board fails to present its report within the 60 calendar day period, the respondent may request in writing a direct appeal to the Secretary, in which case the Secretary shall, within 7 calendar days after the request, issue an order directing the Board to issue its findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations to the Secretary within 30 calendar days after such order. If the Board fails to issue its findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations within that time frame to the Secretary after the entry of such order, the Secretary shall, within 30 calendar days thereafter, issue an order based upon the report of the hearing officer and the record of the proceedings or issue an order remanding the matter back to the hearing officer for additional proceedings in accordance with the order. If (i) a direct appeal is requested, (ii) the Board fails to issue its findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations within the 30-day mandate from the Secretary or the Secretary fails to order the Board to do so, and (iii) the Secretary fails to issue an order within 30 calendar days thereafter, then the hearing officer's report is deemed accepted and a final decision of the Secretary. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, if the Secretary, upon review, determines that substantial justice has not been done in the revocation, suspension, or refusal to issue or renew a license or other disciplinary action taken as the result of the entry of the hearing officer's report, the Secretary may order a rehearing by the same or other examiners the Director may issue an order based on the report of the hearing officer. If the Secretary Director disagrees with the recommendation of the Board or the hearing officer, the Secretary Director may issue an order in contravention of the recommendation.

(Source: P.A. 87-783; 87-1237.)

(225 ILCS 55/130) (from Ch. 111, par. 8351-130)
 (Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 130. Order; certified copy. An order or a certified copy thereof, over the seal of the Department and purporting to be signed by the Secretary Director, shall be prima facie proof:

- (a) that the signature is the genuine signature of the Secretary Director;
- (b) that the Secretary Director is duly appointed and qualified; and
- (c) that the Board and its members are qualified to act.

(Source: P.A. 87-783.)

(225 ILCS 55/145) (from Ch. 111, par. 8351-145)
 (Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 145. Summary suspension. The Secretary Director may summarily suspend the license of a marriage

and family therapist or an associate marriage and family therapist without a hearing, simultaneously with the institution of proceedings for a hearing provided for in this Act, if the Secretary ~~Director~~ finds that evidence in his or her possession indicates that a marriage and family therapist's or associate marriage and family therapist's continuation in practice would constitute an imminent danger to the public. In the event that the Secretary ~~Director~~ summarily suspends the license of a marriage and family therapist or an associate marriage and family therapist without a hearing, a hearing by the Board must be held within 30 calendar days after the suspension has occurred.

(Source: P.A. 91-362, eff. 1-1-00.)

Section 20. The Nursing Home Administrators Licensing and Disciplinary Act is amended by changing Sections 4, 5, 5.1, 6, 10.5, 11, 13, 15, 17, 18, 19, 20, 20.1, 21, 22, 24, 24.1, 26, and 28 as follows:

(225 ILCS 70/4) (from Ch. 111, par. 3654)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 4. Definitions. For purposes of this Act, the following definitions shall have the following meanings, except where the context requires otherwise:

- (1) "Act" means the Nursing Home Administrators Licensing and Disciplinary Act.
- (2) "Department" means the Department of Financial and Professional Regulation.
- (3) "Secretary" ~~"Director"~~ means the Secretary ~~Director~~ of Financial and Professional Regulation.
- (4) "Board" means the Nursing Home Administrators Licensing and Disciplinary Board appointed by the Governor.

(5) "Nursing home administrator" means the individual licensed under this Act and directly responsible for planning, organizing, directing and supervising the operation of a nursing home, or who in fact performs such functions, whether or not such functions are delegated to one or more other persons.

(6) "Nursing home" or "facility" means any entity that is required to be licensed by the Department of Public Health under the Nursing Home Care Act, as amended, other than a sheltered care home as defined thereunder, and includes private homes, institutions, buildings, residences, or other places, whether operated for profit or not, irrespective of the names attributed to them, county homes for the infirm and chronically ill operated pursuant to the County Nursing Home Act, as amended, and any similar institutions operated by a political subdivision of the State of Illinois that provide, though their ownership or management, maintenance, personal care, and nursing for 3 or more persons, not related to the owner by blood or marriage, or any similar facilities in which maintenance is provided to 3 or more persons who by reason of illness of physical infirmity require personal care and nursing.

(7) "Maintenance" means food, shelter and laundry.

(8) "Personal care" means assistance with meals, dressing, movement, bathing, or other personal needs, or general supervision of the physical and mental well-being of an individual who because of age, physical, or mental disability, emotion or behavior disorder, or mental retardation is incapable of managing his or her person, whether or not a guardian has been appointed for such individual. For the purposes of this Act, this definition does not include the professional services of a nurse.

(9) "Nursing" means professional nursing or practical nursing, as those terms are defined in the Nursing and Advanced Practice Nursing Act, for sick or infirm persons who are under the care and supervision of licensed physicians or dentists.

(10) "Disciplinary action" means revocation, suspension, probation, supervision, reprimand, required education, fines or any other action taken by the Department against a person holding a license.

(11) "Impaired" means the inability to practice with reasonable skill and safety due to physical or mental disabilities as evidenced by a written determination or written consent based on clinical evidence including deterioration through the aging process or loss of motor skill, or abuse of drugs or alcohol, of sufficient degree to diminish a person's ability to administer a nursing home.

(12) "Address of record" means the designated address recorded by the Department in the applicant's or licensee's application file or license file maintained by the Department's licensure maintenance unit. It is the duty of the applicant or licensee to inform the Department of any change of address, and such changes must be made either through the Department's website or by contacting the Department's licensure maintenance unit.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97; 90-742, eff. 8-13-98.)

(225 ILCS 70/5) (from Ch. 111, par. 3655)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 5. Board.

(a) There is hereby created the Nursing Home Administrators Licensing and Disciplinary Board. The Board shall consist of ~~7~~ 9 members appointed by the Governor. All shall be residents of the State of Illinois. ~~Two~~ Three members shall be representatives of the general public. ~~Five~~ Six members shall be nursing home administrators who for at least 5 years prior to their appointments were licensed under this Act. The public members shall have no responsibility for management or formation of policy of, nor any financial interest in, nursing homes as defined in this Act, nor any other connection with the profession. In appointing licensed nursing home administrators, the Governor shall take into consideration the recommendations of the nursing home professional associations.

(b) Members shall be appointed for a term of 4 years by the Governor. The Governor shall fill any vacancy for the remainder of the unexpired term. Any member of the Board may be removed by the Governor for cause. Each member shall serve on the Board until his or her successor is appointed and qualified. No member of the Board shall serve more than 2 consecutive 4 year terms.

In making appointments the Governor shall attempt to insure that the various geographic regions of the State of Illinois are properly represented.

(c) The Board shall annually elect one of its members as chairperson and one as vice chairperson. No officer shall be elected more than twice in succession to the same office. Each officer shall serve until his or her successor has been elected and qualified.

(d) A majority of the Board members currently appointed shall constitute a quorum. A vacancy in the membership of the Board shall not impair the right of a quorum to exercise all the rights and perform all the duties of the Board.

(e) Each member and member-officer of the Board ~~may~~ shall receive a per diem stipend as the Secretary ~~Director~~ shall determine. Each member shall be paid their necessary expenses while engaged in the performance of his or her duties.

(f) (Blank).

(g) (Blank).

(h) Members of the Board shall be immune from suit in any action based upon any disciplinary proceedings or other acts performed in good faith as members of the Board.

(i) (Blank).

(j) The Secretary ~~Director~~ shall give due consideration to all recommendations of the Board. If the Secretary ~~Director~~ disagrees with or takes action contrary to the recommendation of the Board, he or she shall provide the Board with a written and specific explanation of his or her action.

(Source: P.A. 89-507, eff. 7-1-97; 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 70/5.1)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 5.1. Powers and duties; rules. The Department shall exercise the powers and duties prescribed by the Civil Administrative Code of Illinois for administration of licensing acts and shall exercise such other powers and duties necessary for effectuating the purposes of this Act. The Department shall adopt rules to implement, interpret, or make specific the provisions and purposes of this Act and may prescribe forms that shall be issued in connection with rulemaking. The Department shall transmit the proposed rulemaking to the Board.

The Department may solicit the advice of the Board on any matter relating to the administration and enforcement of this Act.

~~The Director shall employ, in conformity with the Personnel Code, professional, technical, investigative, and clerical help on a full time or part time basis as necessary for the proper performance of its duties.~~

Upon the written request of the Department, the Department of Public Health, the Department of Human Services or the Department of State Police may cooperate and assist in any investigation undertaken by the Board.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 70/6) (from Ch. 111, par. 3656)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 6. Application procedure. Applications for original licenses shall be made to the Department in writing on forms prescribed by the Department and shall be accompanied by the required fee, which shall not be refundable. The application shall require information as in the judgment of the Department will enable the Department to pass on the qualifications of the applicant for a license.

Applicants have 3 years after the date of application to complete the application process. If the process has not been completed in 3 years, the application shall be denied, the fee forfeited, and the applicant must

reapply and meet the requirements in effect at the time of reapplication.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 70/10.5)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 10.5. Unlicensed practice; violation; civil penalty.

(a) Any person who practices, offers to practice, attempts to practice, or holds oneself out to practice as a nursing home administrator without being licensed under this Act shall, in addition to any other penalty provided by law, pay a civil penalty to the Department in an amount not to exceed ~~\$10,000~~ \$5,000 for each offense as determined by the Department. The civil penalty shall be assessed by the Department after a hearing is held in accordance with the provisions set forth in this Act regarding the provision of a hearing for the discipline of a licensee.

(b) The Department has the authority and power to investigate any and all unlicensed activity.

(c) The civil penalty shall be paid within 60 days after the effective date of the order imposing the civil penalty. The order shall constitute a judgment and may be filed and execution had thereon in the same manner as any judgment from any court of record.

(Source: P.A. 89-474, eff. 6-18-96.)

(225 ILCS 70/11) (from Ch. 111, par. 3661)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 11. Expiration; renewal; continuing education. The expiration date and renewal period for each license issued under this Act shall be set by rule.

Each licensee shall provide proof of having obtained 36 hours of continuing education in the 2 year period preceding the renewal date of the license as a condition of license renewal. The continuing education requirement may be waived in part or in whole for such good cause as may be determined by rule.

Any continuing education course for nursing home administrators approved by the National Continuing Education Review Service of the National Association of Boards of Examiners of Nursing Home Administrators will be accepted toward satisfaction of these requirements.

Any continuing education course for nursing home administrators sponsored by the Life Services Network of Illinois, Illinois Council on Long Term Care, County Nursing Home Association of Illinois, Illinois Health Care Association, Illinois Chapter of American College of Health Care Administrators, and the Illinois Nursing Home Administrators Association will be accepted toward satisfaction of these requirements.

Any school, college or university, State agency, or other entity may apply to the Department for approval as a continuing education sponsor. Criteria for qualification as a continuing education sponsor shall be established by rule.

It shall be the responsibility of each continuing education sponsor to maintain records, as prescribed by rule, to verify attendance.

The Department shall establish by rule a means for the verification of completion of the continuing education required by this Section. This verification may be accomplished through audits of records maintained by registrants; by requiring the filing of continuing education certificates with the Department; or by other means established by the Department.

Any nursing home administrator who has permitted his or her license to expire or who has had his or her license on inactive status may have his or her license restored by making application to the Department and filing proof acceptable to the Department, as defined by rule, of his or her fitness to have his or her license restored and by paying the required fee. Proof of fitness may include evidence certifying to active lawful practice in another jurisdiction satisfactory to the Department and by paying the required restoration fee.

However, any nursing home administrator whose license expired while he or she was (1) in federal service on active duty with the Armed Forces of the United States, or the State Militia called into service or training, or (2) in training or education under the supervision of the United States preliminary to induction into the military services, may have his or her license renewed or restored without paying any lapsed renewal fees if within 2 years after honorable termination of such service, training or education, he or she furnishes the Department with satisfactory evidence to the effect that he or she has been so engaged and that his or her service, training or education has been so terminated.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 70/13) (from Ch. 111, par. 3663)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 13. Endorsement. The Department may, in its discretion, license as a nursing home administrator, without examination, on payment of the required fee, an applicant who is so licensed under the laws of

another U.S. jurisdiction, if the requirements for licensure in the other jurisdiction in which the applicant was licensed were, at the date of his or her licensure, substantially equivalent to the requirements then in force in this State; or if the applicant's qualifications were, at the date of his or her licensure in the other jurisdiction, substantially equivalent to the requirements then in force in this State.

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section, all applicants seeking licensure under this Section shall be required to take and pass an examination testing the applicant's knowledge of Illinois law relating to the practice of nursing home administration.

~~Applicants have 3 years from the date of application to complete the application process. If the process has not been completed in 3 years, the application shall be denied, the fee shall be forfeited, and the applicant must reapply and meet the requirements in effect at the time of reapplication.~~

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 70/15) (from Ch. 111, par. 3665)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 15. Returned checks; fines. Any person who delivers a check or other payment to the Department that is returned to the Department unpaid by the financial institution upon which it is drawn shall pay to the Department, in addition to the amount already owed to the Department, a fine of \$50. The fines imposed by this Section are in addition to any other discipline provided under this Act for unlicensed practice or practice on a nonrenewed license. The Department shall notify the person that payment of fees and fines shall be paid to the Department by certified check or money order within 30 calendar days of the notification. If, after the expiration of 30 days from the date of the notification, the person has failed to submit the necessary remittance, the Department shall automatically terminate the license or deny the application, without hearing. If, after termination or denial, the person seeks a license, he or she shall apply to the Department for restoration or issuance of the license and pay all fees and fines due to the Department. The Department may establish a fee for the processing of an application for restoration of a license to pay all expenses of processing this application. The ~~Secretary~~ Director may waive the fines due under this Section in individual cases where the ~~Secretary~~ Director finds that the fines would be unreasonable or unnecessarily burdensome.

(Source: P.A. 92-146, eff. 1-1-02.)

(225 ILCS 70/17) (from Ch. 111, par. 3667)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 17. Grounds for disciplinary action.

(a) The Department may impose fines not to exceed ~~\$10,000~~ \$1,000, or may refuse to issue or to renew, or may revoke, suspend, place on probation, censure, reprimand or take other disciplinary or non-disciplinary action with regard to the license of any person, for any one or combination of the following causes:

(1) Intentional material misstatement in furnishing information to the Department.

(2) Conviction of or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to any crime that is a felony under the laws of the United States or any state or territory thereof ~~that is a felony~~ or a misdemeanor of which an essential element is dishonesty; or ~~of any crime~~ that is directly related to the practice of the profession of nursing home administration.

(3) Making any misrepresentation for the purpose of obtaining a license, or violating any provision of this Act.

(4) Immoral conduct in the commission of any act, such as sexual abuse or sexual misconduct, related to the licensee's practice.

(5) Failing to respond within 30 ~~60~~ days, to a written request made by the Department for information.

(6) Engaging in dishonorable, unethical or unprofessional conduct of a character likely to deceive, defraud or harm the public.

(7) Habitual use or addiction to alcohol, narcotics, stimulants, or any other chemical agent or drug which results in the inability to practice with reasonable judgment, skill or safety.

(8) Discipline by another U.S. jurisdiction if at least one of the grounds for the discipline is the same or substantially equivalent to those set forth herein.

(9) A finding by the Department that the licensee, after having his or her license placed on probationary status has violated the terms of probation.

(10) Willfully making or filing false records or reports in his or her practice, including but not limited to false records filed with State agencies or departments.

(11) Physical illness, mental illness, or other impairment or disability, including, but not limited to,

deterioration through the aging

process, or loss of motor skill that results in the inability to practice the profession with reasonable judgment, skill or safety.

(12) Disregard or violation of this Act or of any rule issued pursuant to this Act.

(13) Aiding or abetting another in the violation of this Act or any rule or regulation issued pursuant to this Act.

(14) Allowing one's license to be used by an unlicensed person.

(15) ~~(Blank). Conviction of any crime an essential element of which is misstatement, fraud or dishonesty, or conviction in this State or another state of any crime that is a felony under the laws of this State or conviction of a felony in a federal court.~~

(16) Professional incompetence in the practice of nursing home administration.

(17) Conviction of a violation of Section 12-19 of the Criminal Code of 1961 for the abuse and gross neglect of a long term care facility resident.

(18) Violation of the Nursing Home Care Act or of any rule issued under the Nursing Home Care Act.

All proceedings to suspend, revoke, place on probationary status, or take any other disciplinary action as the Department may deem proper, with regard to a license on any of the foregoing grounds, must be commenced within ~~5~~ 3 years next after receipt by the Department of (i) a complaint alleging the commission of or notice of the conviction order for any of the acts described herein or (ii) a referral for investigation under Section 3-108 of the Nursing Home Care Act.

The entry of an order or judgment by any circuit court establishing that any person holding a license under this Act is a person in need of mental treatment operates as a suspension of that license. That person may resume their practice only upon the entry of a Department order based upon a finding by the Board that they have been determined to be recovered from mental illness by the court and upon the Board's recommendation that they be permitted to resume their practice.

The Department, upon the recommendation of the Board, ~~may~~ shall adopt rules which set forth standards to be used in determining what constitutes:

(i) ~~(a)~~ when a person will be deemed sufficiently rehabilitated to warrant the public trust;

(ii) ~~(b)~~ dishonorable, unethical or unprofessional conduct of a character likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public;

(iii) ~~(c)~~ immoral conduct in the commission of any act related to the licensee's practice; and

(iv) ~~(d)~~ professional incompetence in the practice of nursing home administration.

However, no such rule shall be admissible into evidence in any civil action except for review of a licensing or other disciplinary action under this Act.

In enforcing this Section, the Department or Board, upon a showing of a possible violation, may compel any individual licensed to practice under this Act, or who has applied for licensure pursuant to this Act, to submit to a mental or physical examination, or both, as required by and at the expense of the Department. The examining physician or physicians shall be those specifically designated by the Department or Board. The Department or Board may order the examining physician to present testimony concerning this mental or physical examination of the licensee or applicant. No information shall be excluded by reason of any common law or statutory privilege relating to communications between the licensee or applicant and the examining physician. The individual to be examined may have, at his or her own expense, another physician of his or her choice present during all aspects of the examination. Failure of any individual to submit to mental or physical examination, when directed, shall be grounds for suspension of his or her license until such time as the individual submits to the examination if the Department finds, after notice and hearing, that the refusal to submit to the examination was without reasonable cause.

If the Department or Board finds an individual unable to practice because of the reasons set forth in this Section, the Department or Board shall require such individual to submit to care, counseling, or treatment by physicians approved or designated by the Department or Board, as a condition, term, or restriction for continued, reinstated, or renewed licensure to practice; or in lieu of care, counseling, or treatment, the Department may file, or the Board may recommend to the Department to file, a complaint to immediately suspend, revoke, or otherwise discipline the license of the individual. Any individual whose license was granted pursuant to this Act or continued, reinstated, renewed, disciplined or supervised, subject to such terms, conditions or restrictions who shall fail to comply with such terms, conditions or restrictions shall be referred to the ~~Secretary~~ Director for a determination as to whether the licensee shall have his or her license suspended immediately, pending a hearing by the Department. In instances in which the ~~Secretary~~ Director immediately suspends a license under this Section, a hearing upon such person's license must be convened

by the Board within 30 ~~15~~ days after such suspension and completed without appreciable delay. The Department and Board shall have the authority to review the subject administrator's record of treatment and counseling regarding the impairment, to the extent permitted by applicable federal statutes and regulations safeguarding the confidentiality of medical records.

An individual licensed under this Act, affected under this Section, shall be afforded an opportunity to demonstrate to the Department or Board that he or she can resume practice in compliance with acceptable and prevailing standards under the provisions of his or her license.

(b) Any individual or organization acting in good faith, and not in a wilful and wanton manner, in complying with this Act by providing any report or other information to the Department, or assisting in the investigation or preparation of such information, or by participating in proceedings of the Department, or by serving as a member of the Board, shall not, as a result of such actions, be subject to criminal prosecution or civil damages.

(c) Members of the Board, and persons retained under contract to assist and advise in an investigation, shall be indemnified by the State for any actions occurring within the scope of services on or for the Board, done in good faith and not wilful and wanton in nature. The Attorney General shall defend all such actions unless he or she determines either that there would be a conflict of interest in such representation or that the actions complained of were not in good faith or were wilful and wanton.

Should the Attorney General decline representation, a person entitled to indemnification under this Section shall have the right to employ counsel of his or her choice, whose fees shall be provided by the State, after approval by the Attorney General, unless there is a determination by a court that the member's actions were not in good faith or were wilful and wanton.

A person entitled to indemnification under this Section must notify the Attorney General within 7 days of receipt of notice of the initiation of any action involving services of the Board. Failure to so notify the Attorney General shall constitute an absolute waiver of the right to a defense and indemnification.

The Attorney General shall determine within 7 days after receiving such notice, whether he or she will undertake to represent a person entitled to indemnification under this Section.

(d) The determination by a circuit court that a licensee is subject to involuntary admission or judicial admission as provided in the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Code, as amended, operates as an automatic suspension. Such suspension will end only upon a finding by a court that the patient is no longer subject to involuntary admission or judicial admission and issues an order so finding and discharging the patient; and upon the recommendation of the Board to the Secretary ~~Director~~ that the licensee be allowed to resume his or her practice.

(e) The Department may refuse to issue or may suspend the license of any person who fails to file a return, or to pay the tax, penalty or interest shown in a filed return, or to pay any final assessment of tax, penalty or interest, as required by any tax Act administered by the Department of Revenue, until such time as the requirements of any such tax Act are satisfied.

(f) The Department of Public Health shall transmit to the Department a list of those facilities which receive an "A" violation as defined in Section 1-129 of the Nursing Home Care Act.

(Source: P.A. 89-197, eff. 7-21-95; 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 70/18) (from Ch. 111, par. 3668)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 18. Cease and desist order.

(a) If any person who is not a licensed nursing home administrator violates a provision of this Act, the Secretary ~~Director~~ may, in the name of the People of the State of Illinois, through the Attorney General of the State of Illinois or the State's Attorney of any county in which the action is brought, petition for an order enjoining such violation or for an order enforcing compliance with this Act. Upon the filing of a verified petition in court, the court may issue a temporary restraining order, without notice or bond, and may preliminarily and permanently enjoin such violation. If it is established that such person has violated or is violating the injunction, the Court may punish the offender for contempt of court. Proceedings under this Section shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, all other remedies and penalties provided by this Act.

(b) If any person shall practice as a nursing home administrator or hold himself or herself out as a nursing home administrator without being licensed under the provisions of this Act, then any licensed nursing home administrator, any interested party, or any person injured thereby may, in addition to the Secretary ~~Director~~, petition for relief as provided in subsection (a) of this Section.

Whoever knowingly practices or offers to practice nursing home administration in this State without being licensed for that purpose shall be guilty of a Class A misdemeanor and for each subsequent conviction shall be guilty of a Class 4 felony.

(c) Whenever in the opinion of the Department any person not licensed in good standing violates any provision of this Act, the Department may issue a rule to show cause why an order to cease and desist should not be entered against him or her. The rule shall clearly set forth the grounds relied upon by the Department and shall provide a period of 7 working days from the date of the rule to file an answer to the satisfaction of the Department. Failure to answer to the satisfaction of the Department shall cause an order to cease and desist to be issued immediately.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 70/19) (from Ch. 111, par. 3669)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 19. Investigation; hearing notification. Upon the motion of either the Department or the Board or upon the verified complaint in writing of any person setting forth facts that, if proven, would constitute grounds for suspension or revocation under Section 17 of this Act, the Department shall investigate the actions of any person, so accused, who holds or represents that he or she holds a license. Such a person is hereinafter called the accused.

The Department shall, before suspending, revoking, placing on probationary status, or taking any other disciplinary action as the Department may deem proper with regard to any license at least 30 days prior to the date set for the hearing, notify the accused in writing of any charges made and the time and place for a hearing of the charges before the Board, direct them to file their written answer to such notice to the Board under oath within 30 days after the service on them of such notice and inform them that if they fail to file such answer default will be taken against them and their license may be suspended, revoked, placed on probationary status, or have other disciplinary action, including limiting the scope, nature or extent of their practice, as the Department may deem proper taken with regard thereto.

~~Written~~ Such ~~written~~ notice ~~and any notice in such proceedings thereafter~~ may be served by personal delivery of the same, personally, to the accused, or by mailing the same by registered or certified mail to the applicant or licensee at his or her last address of record with address specified by the accused in their last notification to the Department.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 70/20) (from Ch. 111, par. 3670)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 20. Board hearing; recommendation. At the time and place fixed in the notice, the Board shall proceed to hear the charges and ~~the parties both the accused person and the complainant~~ shall be accorded ample opportunity to present in person, or by counsel, such statements, testimony, evidence and argument as may be pertinent to the charges or to any defense thereto. The Board may continue such hearing from time to time. If the Board is not sitting at the time and place fixed in the notice or at the time and place to which the hearing has been continued, the Department shall continue such hearing for a period not to exceed 30 days.

In case the accused person, after receiving notice, fails to file an answer, the Board may recommend that his or her license be suspended, revoked or placed on probationary status, or the Board may recommend whatever disciplinary action as it may deem proper, without a hearing, if the act or acts charged constitute sufficient grounds for such action under this Act.

The Board has the authority to recommend to the ~~Secretary Director~~ that probation be granted or that other disciplinary action be taken as it deems proper. If disciplinary action, other than suspension or revocation, is taken the Board may recommend that the ~~Secretary Director~~ impose reasonable limitations and requirements upon the accused to insure compliance with the terms of the probation or other disciplinary action, including but not limited to regular reporting by the accused to the Department of their actions, placing themselves under the care of a qualified physician for treatment, or limiting their practice in such manner as the ~~Secretary Director~~ may require.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 70/20.1)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 20.1. Summary suspension. The ~~Secretary Director~~ may summarily suspend the license of a nursing home administrator without a hearing, simultaneously with the institution of proceedings for a hearing provided under this ~~Act Section~~ if the ~~Secretary Director~~ finds that evidence in his or her possession indicates that an administrator's continuation in practice would constitute an immediate danger to the public. If the ~~Secretary Director~~ summarily suspends the license of an administrator without a hearing, a hearing shall be held within 30 days after the suspension has occurred.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 70/21) (from Ch. 111, par. 3671)
 (Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 21. Appointment of hearing officer. The Secretary Director shall have the authority to appoint an attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of Illinois to serve as the hearing officer in any action for refusal to issue, renew, or discipline a license. The hearing officer shall have full authority to conduct the hearing. ~~There shall be present at least one member of the Board at any such hearing.~~ The hearing officer shall report his or her findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations to the Board. The Board shall have 60 days after receipt of the report to review the report of the hearing officer and present its findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations to the Secretary Director. If the Board fails to present its report to the Secretary within the 60 day period, the respondent may request in writing a direct appeal to the Secretary, in which case the Secretary shall, within 7 calendar days after the request, issue an order directing the Board to issue its findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations to the Secretary within 30 calendar days after such order. If the Board fails to issue its findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations within that time frame to the Secretary after the entry of such order, the Secretary shall, within 30 calendar days thereafter, issue an order based upon the report of the hearing officer and the record of the proceedings or issue an order remanding the matter back to the hearing officer for additional proceedings in accordance with the order. If (i) a direct appeal is requested, (ii) the Board fails to issue its findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations within the 30-day mandate from the Secretary or the Secretary fails to order the Board to do so, and (iii) the Secretary fails to issue an order within 30 calendar days thereafter, then the hearing officer's report is deemed accepted and a final decision of the Secretary. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, if the Secretary, upon review, determines that substantial justice has not been done in the revocation, suspension, or refusal to issue or renew a license or other disciplinary action taken as the result of the entry of the hearing officer's report, the Secretary may order a rehearing by the same or other examiners ~~the Director may issue an order based on the report of the hearing officer. However, if the Board does present its report within the specified 60 days, the Director's order shall be based upon the report of the Board. If the Secretary Director disagrees with the recommendation of the Board or the hearing officer, the Secretary Director may issue an order in contravention of the Board's report. The Secretary Director shall promptly provide a written explanation to the Board on any such disagreement.~~

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 70/22) (from Ch. 111, par. 3672)
 (Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 22. Subpoena power. The Board or Department has power to subpoena and bring before it any person in this State and to take testimony either orally or by deposition, or both, with the same fees and mileage and in the same manner as is prescribed by law for judicial proceedings in civil cases.

The Department, upon a determination that probable cause exists that a violation of one or more of the grounds for discipline listed in Section 17 has occurred or is occurring, may subpoena the records of an individual licensed under this Act provided that prior to the submission of such records to the Board, all information indicating the identity of any resident shall be removed and deleted. The use of such records shall be restricted to members of the Board and appropriate staff of the Department for the purpose of determining the existence of one or more grounds for discipline of the nursing home administrator as provided for by Section 17 of this Act. Any such review of individual residents' records shall be conducted by the Board in strict confidentiality, provided that such resident records shall be admissible in a disciplinary hearing, before the Department, when necessary to substantiate the grounds for discipline alleged against the administrator licensed under this Act, and provided further that nothing herein shall be deemed to supersede the provisions of Part 21 of Article VIII of the Code of Civil Procedure, as now or hereafter amended, to the extent applicable.

The Secretary Director, the designated hearing officer, and any member of the Board have the power to administer oaths at any hearing that the Department is authorized to conduct and any other oaths authorized in an Act administered by the Department.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 70/24) (from Ch. 111, par. 3674)
 (Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 24. Motion for rehearing. The Board shall present to the Secretary Director a written report of its findings and recommendations. A copy of such report shall be served upon the accused person, either personally or by certified mail. Within 20 days after such service, the accused person may present to the Department a motion, in writing, for a rehearing, which shall specify the particular grounds for rehearing. If

the accused person orders and pays for a transcript of the record as provided in Section 23, the time elapsing thereafter and before such transcript is ready for delivery to them shall not be counted as part of such 30 days.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 70/24.1)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 24.1. Surrender of license; record; list of ~~disciplined licensees~~ ~~disciplines~~. Upon the suspension, revocation, placement on probationary status, or the taking of any other disciplinary action deemed proper by the Board with regard to a license, the accused shall surrender his or her license to the Department, if ordered to do so by the Department, and upon his or her failure or refusal to do so, the Department may seize the license.

Each order of revocation, suspension, or other disciplinary action shall contain a brief, concise statement of the ground or grounds upon which the Department's action is based, as well as the specific terms and conditions of such action. This document shall be retained as a permanent record by the Board and the ~~Secretary~~ ~~Director~~.

The Department shall at least annually publish a list of the names of all persons disciplined under this Act in the preceding 12 months. Such lists shall be mailed by the Department to any person in the State upon request.

~~In those instances where an order of revocation, suspension, or other disciplinary action has been rendered by virtue of a nursing home administrator's physical illness, including but not limited to deterioration through the aging process, or loss of motor skill that results in an inability to practice with reasonable judgment, skill, or safety, the Department shall only permit this document, and the record of the hearing incident thereto, to be observed, inspected, viewed, or copied pursuant to court order.~~

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 70/26) (from Ch. 111, par. 3676)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 26. An order of revocation, suspension, placing the license on probationary status, or other formal disciplinary action as the Department may deem proper, or a certified copy thereof, over the seal of the Department and purporting to be signed by the ~~Secretary~~ ~~Director~~, is prima facie proof that:

- (a) Such signature is the genuine signature of the ~~Secretary~~ ~~Director~~;
- (b) The ~~Secretary~~ ~~Director~~ is duly appointed and qualified; and
- (c) The Board and the members thereof are qualified.

Such proof may be rebutted.

(Source: P.A. 85-932.)

(225 ILCS 70/28) (from Ch. 111, par. 3678)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 28. Rehearing on order of ~~Secretary~~ ~~Director~~. Whenever the ~~Secretary~~ ~~Director~~ believes justice has not been done in the refusal to issue or renew a license or revocation, suspension, or discipline of a license, he or she may order a rehearing.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

Section 25. The Physician Assistant Practice Act of 1987 is amended by changing Sections 3, 4, 7, 10.5, 11, 12, 14.1, 15, 21, 22, 22.1, 22.2, 22.5, 22.6, 22.7, 22.8, 22.9, 22.10, and 22.13 as follows:

(225 ILCS 95/3) (from Ch. 111, par. 4603)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 3. Administrative Procedure Act. The Illinois Administrative Procedure Act is hereby expressly adopted and incorporated herein as if all of the provisions of that Act were included in this Act, except that the provision of subsection (d) of Section 10-65 of the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act that provides that at hearings the licensee has the right to show compliance with all lawful requirements for retention, continuation or renewal of the license is specifically excluded. For the purposes of this Act the notice required under Section 10-25 of the Administrative Procedure Act is deemed sufficient when mailed to the last known address of a party. The ~~Secretary~~ ~~Director~~ may promulgate rules for the administration and enforcement of this Act and may prescribe forms to be issued in connection with this Act.

(Source: P.A. 88-45.)

(225 ILCS 95/4) (from Ch. 111, par. 4604)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 4. In this Act:

1. "Department" means the Department of Financial and Professional Regulation.

2. "Secretary Director" means the Secretary Director of Financial and Professional Regulation.

3. "Physician assistant" means any person not a physician who has been certified as a physician assistant by the National Commission on the Certification of Physician Assistants or equivalent successor agency and performs procedures under the supervision of a physician as defined in this Act. A physician assistant may perform such procedures within the specialty of the supervising physician, except that such physician shall exercise such direction, supervision and control over such physician assistants as will assure that patients shall receive quality medical care. Physician assistants shall be capable of performing a variety of tasks within the specialty of medical care under the supervision of a physician. Supervision of the physician assistant shall not be construed to necessarily require the personal presence of the supervising physician at all times at the place where services are rendered, as long as there is communication available for consultation by radio, telephone or telecommunications within established guidelines as determined by the physician/physician assistant team. The supervising physician may delegate tasks and duties to the physician assistant. Delegated tasks or duties shall be consistent with physician assistant education, training, and experience. The delegated tasks or duties shall be specific to the practice setting and shall be implemented and reviewed under guidelines established by the physician or physician/physician assistant team. A physician assistant, acting as an agent of the physician, shall be permitted to transmit the supervising physician's orders as determined by the institution's by-laws, policies, procedures, or job description within which the physician/physician assistant team practices. Physician assistants shall practice only within the established guidelines.

4. "Board" means the Medical Licensing Board constituted under the Medical Practice Act of 1987.

5. "Disciplinary Board" means the Medical Disciplinary Board constituted under the Medical Practice Act of 1987.

6. "Physician" means, for purposes of this Act, a person licensed to practice medicine in all its branches under the Medical Practice Act of 1987.

7. "Supervising Physician" means, for the purposes of this Act, the primary supervising physician of a physician assistant, who, within his specialty and expertise may delegate a variety of tasks and procedures to the physician assistant. Such tasks and procedures shall be delegated within established guidelines. The supervising physician maintains the final responsibility for the care of the patient and the performance of the physician assistant.

8. "Alternate supervising physician" means, for the purpose of this Act, any physician designated by the supervising physician to provide supervision in the event that he or she is unable to provide that supervision ~~for a period not to exceed 30 days unless the Department is notified in writing.~~ The Department may further define "alternate supervising physician" by rule.

The alternate supervising physicians shall maintain all the same responsibilities as the supervising physician. Nothing in this Act shall be construed as relieving any physician of the professional or legal responsibility for the care and treatment of persons attended by him or by physician assistants under his supervision. Nothing in this Act shall be construed as to limit the reasonable number of alternate supervising physicians, provided they are designated by the supervising physician.

9. "Address of record" means the designated address recorded by the Department in the applicant's or licensee's application file or license file maintained by the Department's licensure maintenance unit. It is the duty of the applicant or licensee to inform the Department of any change of address, and such changes must be made either through the Department's website or by contacting the Department's licensure maintenance unit.

(Source: P.A. 89-361, eff. 8-17-95.)

(225 ILCS 95/7) (from Ch. 111, par. 4607)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 7. Supervision requirements. No more than 2 physician assistants shall be supervised by the supervising physician, although a physician assistant shall be able to hold more than one professional position. Each supervising physician shall file a notice of supervision of such physician assistant according to the rules of the Department. However, the alternate supervising physician may supervise more than 2 physician assistants when the supervising physician is unable to provide such supervision consistent with the definition of alternate physician in Section 4. It is the responsibility of the supervising physician to maintain documentation each time he or she has designated an alternative supervising physician. This documentation shall include the date alternate supervisory control began, the date alternate supervisory control ended, and any other changes. A supervising physician shall provide a copy of this documentation to the Department, upon request.

Physician assistants shall be supervised only by physicians as defined in this Act who are engaged in

clinical practice, or in clinical practice in public health or other community health facilities.

Nothing in this Act shall be construed to limit the delegation of tasks or duties by a physician to a nurse or other appropriately trained personnel.

Nothing in this Act shall be construed to prohibit the employment of physician assistants by a hospital, nursing home or other health care facility where such physician assistants function under the supervision of a supervising physician.

Physician assistants may be employed by the Department of Corrections or the Department of Human Services (as successor to the Department of Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities) for service in facilities maintained by such Departments and affiliated training facilities in programs conducted under the authority of the Director of Corrections or the Secretary of Human Services. Each physician assistant employed by the Department of Corrections or the Department of Human Services (as successor to the Department of Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities) shall be under the supervision of a physician engaged in clinical practice and direct patient care. Duties of each physician assistant employed by such Departments are limited to those within the scope of practice of the supervising physician who is fully responsible for all physician assistant activities.

A physician assistant may be employed by a practice group or other entity employing multiple physicians at one or more locations. In that case, one of the physicians practicing at a location shall be designated the supervising physician. The other physicians with that practice group or other entity who practice in the same general type of practice or specialty as the supervising physician may supervise the physician assistant with respect to their patients without being deemed alternate supervising physicians for the purpose of this Act.

(Source: P.A. 93-149, eff. 7-10-03.)

(225 ILCS 95/10.5)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 10.5. Unlicensed practice; violation; civil penalty.

(a) Any person who practices, offers to practice, attempts to practice, or holds oneself out to practice as a physician's assistant without being licensed under this Act shall, in addition to any other penalty provided by law, pay a civil penalty to the Department in an amount not to exceed \$10,000 ~~\$5,000~~ for each offense as determined by the Department. The civil penalty shall be assessed by the Department after a hearing is held in accordance with the provisions set forth in this Act regarding the provision of a hearing for the discipline of a licensee.

(b) The Department has the authority and power to investigate any and all unlicensed activity.

(c) The civil penalty shall be paid within 60 days after the effective date of the order imposing the civil penalty. The order shall constitute a judgment and may be filed and execution had thereon in the same manner as any judgment from any court of record.

(Source: P.A. 89-474, eff. 6-18-96.)

(225 ILCS 95/11) (from Ch. 111, par. 4611)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 11. Committee. There is established a physician assistant advisory committee to the Medical Licensing Board. The physician assistant advisory committee shall review and make recommendations to the Board regarding all matters relating to physician assistants. The physician assistant advisory committee shall be composed of 7 members. Three of the 7 members shall be physicians, 2 of whom shall be members of the Board and appointed to the advisory committee by the chairman. One physician, not a member of the Board, shall be a supervisor of a certified physician assistant and shall be approved by the Governor from a list of Illinois physicians supervising certified physician assistants. Three members shall be physician assistants, certified under the law and appointed by the Governor from a list of 10 names recommended by the Board of Directors of the Illinois Academy of Physician Assistants. One member, not employed or having any material interest in any health care field, shall be appointed by the Governor and represent the public. The chairman of the physician assistant advisory committee shall be a member elected by a majority vote of the physician assistant advisory committee unless already a member of the Board. The physician assistant advisory committee is required to meet and report to the Board as physician assistant issues arise. The terms of office of each of the original 7 members shall be at staggered intervals. One physician and one physician assistant shall serve for a 2 year term. One physician and one physician assistant shall serve a 3 year term. One physician, one physician assistant and the public member shall serve a 4 year term. Upon the expiration of the term of any member, his successor shall be appointed for a term of 4 years in the same manner as the initial appointment. No member shall serve more than 2 consecutive terms.

~~The members of the physician assistant advisory committee shall be reimbursed for all authorized~~

~~legitimate and necessary expenses incurred in attending the meetings of the committee.~~

A majority of the physician assistant advisory committee members currently appointed shall constitute a quorum. A vacancy in the membership of the committee shall not impair the right of a quorum to perform all of the duties of the committee.

Members of the physician assistant advisory committee shall have no liability for any action based upon a disciplinary proceeding or other activity performed in good faith as a member of the committee.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97; 91-827, eff. 6-13-00.)

(225 ILCS 95/12) (from Ch. 111, par. 4612)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 12. A person shall be qualified for licensure as a physician assistant and the Department may issue a physician assistant license to a ~~if that person who:~~

1. Has applied in writing in form and substance satisfactory to the Department and has not violated any of the provisions of Section 21 of this Act or the rules promulgated hereunder. The Department may take into consideration any felony conviction of the applicant but such conviction shall not operate as an absolute bar to licensure; ~~and~~

2. Has successfully completed the examination provided by the National Commission on the Certification of Physician's Assistant or its successor agency; -

3. Holds a certificate issued by the National Commission on the Certification of Physician Assistants or an equivalent successor agency; and

4. Complies with all applicable rules of the Department.

(Source: P.A. 85-981.)

(225 ILCS 95/14.1)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 14.1. Fees.

(a) Fees collected for the administration of this Act shall be set by the ~~The~~ Department by rule shall provide by rule for a schedule of fees to be paid for licenses by all applicants. All fees are not refundable.

(b) (Blank). Except as provided in subsection (c) below, the fees for the administration and enforcement of this Act, including but not limited to original licensure, renewal, and restoration, shall be set by rule.

(c) All moneys collected under this Act by the Department shall be deposited in the Illinois State Medical Disciplinary Fund in the State Treasury and used (1) in the exercise of its powers and performance of its duties under this Act, as such use is made by the Department; (2) for costs directly related to license renewal of persons licensed under this Act; ~~and~~ (3) ~~for the costs incurred by the physician assistant advisory committee in the exercise of its powers and performance of its duties under this Act, as such use is made by the Department; and~~ (4) for direct and allocable indirect costs related to the public purposes of the Department of Professional Regulation.

All earnings received from investment of moneys in the Illinois State Medical Disciplinary Fund shall be deposited into the Illinois State Medical Disciplinary Fund and shall be used for the same purposes as fees deposited in the Fund.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 95/15) (from Ch. 111, par. 4615)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 15. Endorsement. Upon payment of the required fee, the Department may, in its discretion, license as a physician assistant, an ~~An~~ applicant who is ~~may be approved as a physician assistant who has been licensed or approved in another jurisdiction, if the requirements for licensure in that jurisdiction were, at the time of licensure, state which has substantially equivalent to the requirements in force in this State on that date or equivalent to the requirements of this Act the same requirements, and to whom the applicant applies and pays a fee determined by the Department.~~

(Source: P.A. 85-981.)

(225 ILCS 95/21) (from Ch. 111, par. 4621)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 21. Grounds for disciplinary action.

(a) The Department may refuse to issue or to renew, or may revoke, suspend, place on probation, censure or reprimand, or take other disciplinary or non-disciplinary action with regard to any license issued under this Act as the Department may deem proper, including the issuance of fines not to exceed \$10,000 ~~\$5000~~ for each violation, for any one or combination of the following causes:

(1) Material misstatement in furnishing information to the Department.

(2) Violations of this Act, or the rules adopted under this Act.

(3) Conviction of or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to any crime that is a felony under the laws of the United States or any state or territory thereof ~~any U.S. jurisdiction that is a felony~~ or that is a misdemeanor, of which an

essential element ~~of which~~ is dishonesty; or ~~of any crime that which~~ is directly related to the practice of the profession.

(4) Making any misrepresentation for the purpose of obtaining licenses.

(5) Professional incompetence.

(6) Aiding or assisting another person in violating any provision of this Act or its rules.

(7) Failing, within 60 days, to provide information in response to a written request made by the Department.

(8) Engaging in dishonorable, unethical, or unprofessional conduct, as defined by rule, of a character likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public.

(9) Habitual or excessive use or addiction to alcohol, narcotics, stimulants, or any other chemical agent or drug that results in a physician assistant's inability to practice with reasonable judgment, skill, or safety.

(10) Discipline by another U.S. jurisdiction or foreign nation, if at least one of the grounds for discipline is the same or substantially equivalent to those set forth in this Section.

(11) Directly or indirectly giving to or receiving from any person, firm, corporation, partnership, or association any fee, commission, rebate or other form of compensation for any professional services not actually or personally rendered.

(12) A finding by the Disciplinary Board that the licensee, after having his or her license placed on probationary status has violated the terms of probation.

(13) Abandonment of a patient.

(14) Willfully making or filing false records or reports in his or her practice, including but not limited to false records filed with state agencies or departments.

(15) Willfully failing to report an instance of suspected child abuse or neglect as required by the Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act.

(16) ~~Physical illness, or mental illness or impairment including but not limited to deterioration through the aging process, or loss of motor skill, mental illness, or disability~~ that results in the inability to practice the profession with

reasonable judgment, skill, or safety, including, but not limited to, deterioration through the aging process or loss of motor skill.

(17) Being named as a perpetrator in an indicated report by the Department of Children and Family Services under the Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act, and upon proof by clear and convincing evidence that the licensee has caused a child to be an abused child or neglected child as defined in the Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act.

(18) ~~(Blank). Conviction in this State or another state of any crime that is a felony under the laws of this State, or conviction of a felony in a federal court.~~

(19) Gross negligence malpractice resulting in permanent injury or death of a patient.

(20) Employment of fraud, deception or any unlawful means in applying for or securing a license as a physician assistant.

(21) Exceeding the authority delegated to him or her by his or her supervising physician in guidelines established by the physician/physician assistant team.

(22) Immoral conduct in the commission of any act, such as sexual abuse, sexual misconduct or sexual exploitation related to the licensee's practice.

(23) Violation of the Health Care Worker Self-Referral Act.

(24) Practicing under a false or assumed name, except as provided by law.

(25) Making a false or misleading statement regarding his or her skill or the efficacy or value of the medicine, treatment, or remedy prescribed by him or her in the course of treatment.

(26) Allowing another person to use his or her license to practice.

(27) Prescribing, selling, administering, distributing, giving, or self-administering a drug classified as a controlled substance (designated product) or narcotic for other than medically-accepted therapeutic purposes.

(28) Promotion of the sale of drugs, devices, appliances, or goods provided for a patient in a manner to exploit the patient for financial gain.

(29) A pattern of practice or other behavior that demonstrates incapacity or

incompetence to practice under this Act.

(30) Violating State or federal laws or regulations relating to controlled substances or other legend drugs.

(31) Exceeding the limited prescriptive authority delegated by the supervising physician or violating the written guidelines delegating that authority.

(32) Practicing without providing to the Department a notice of supervision or delegation of prescriptive authority.

(b) The Department may, without a hearing, refuse to issue or renew or may suspend the license of any person who fails to file a return, or to pay the tax, penalty or interest shown in a filed return, or to pay any final assessment of the tax, penalty, or interest as required by any tax Act administered by the Illinois Department of Revenue, until such time as the requirements of any such tax Act are satisfied.

(c) The determination by a circuit court that a licensee is subject to involuntary admission or judicial admission as provided in the Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Code operates as an automatic suspension. The suspension will end only upon a finding by a court that the patient is no longer subject to involuntary admission or judicial admission and issues an order so finding and discharging the patient, and upon the recommendation of the Disciplinary Board to the Secretary ~~Director~~ that the licensee be allowed to resume his or her practice.

(d) In enforcing this Section, the Department upon a showing of a possible violation may compel an individual licensed to practice under this Act, or who has applied for licensure under this Act, to submit to a mental or physical examination, or both, as required by and at the expense of the Department. The Department may order the examining physician to present testimony concerning the mental or physical examination of the licensee or applicant. No information shall be excluded by reason of any common law or statutory privilege relating to communications between the licensee or applicant and the examining physician. The examining physicians shall be specifically designated by the Department. The individual to be examined may have, at his or her own expense, another physician of his or her choice present during all aspects of this examination. Failure of an individual to submit to a mental or physical examination, when directed, shall be grounds for suspension of his or her license until the individual submits to the examination if the Department finds, after notice and hearing, that the refusal to submit to the examination was without reasonable cause.

If the Department finds an individual unable to practice because of the reasons set forth in this Section, the Department may require that individual to submit to care, counseling, or treatment by physicians approved or designated by the Department, as a condition, term, or restriction for continued, reinstated, or renewed licensure to practice; or, in lieu of care, counseling, or treatment, the Department may file a complaint to immediately suspend, revoke, or otherwise discipline the license of the individual. An individual whose license was granted, continued, reinstated, renewed, disciplined, or supervised subject to such terms, conditions, or restrictions, and who fails to comply with such terms, conditions, or restrictions, shall be referred to the Secretary ~~Director~~ for a determination as to whether the individual shall have his or her license suspended immediately, pending a hearing by the Department.

In instances in which the Secretary ~~Director~~ immediately suspends a person's license under this Section, a hearing on that person's license must be convened by the Department within 30 ~~45~~ days after the suspension and completed without appreciable delay. The Department shall have the authority to review the subject individual's record of treatment and counseling regarding the impairment to the extent permitted by applicable federal statutes and regulations safeguarding the confidentiality of medical records.

An individual licensed under this Act and affected under this Section shall be afforded an opportunity to demonstrate to the Department that he or she can resume practice in compliance with acceptable and prevailing standards under the provisions of his or her license.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97; 90-116, eff. 7-14-97; 90-655, eff. 7-30-98.)

(225 ILCS 95/22) (from Ch. 111, par. 4622)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 22. Returned checks; fines. Any person who delivers a check or other payment to the Department that is returned to the Department unpaid by the financial institution upon which it is drawn shall pay to the Department, in addition to the amount already owed to the Department, a fine of \$50. The fines imposed by this Section are in addition to any other discipline provided under this Act for unlicensed practice or practice on a nonrenewed license. The Department shall notify the person that payment of fees and fines shall be paid to the Department by certified check or money order within 30 calendar days of the notification. If, after the expiration of 30 days from the date of the notification, the person has failed to submit the necessary remittance, the Department shall automatically terminate the license or certificate or

deny the application, without hearing. If, after termination or denial, the person seeks a license or certificate, he or she shall apply to the Department for restoration or issuance of the license or certificate and pay all fees and fines due to the Department. The Department may establish a fee for the processing of an application for restoration of a license or certificate to pay all expenses of processing this application. The Secretary ~~Director~~ may waive the fines due under this Section in individual cases where the Secretary ~~Director~~ finds that the fines would be unreasonable or unnecessarily burdensome.

(Source: P.A. 92-146, eff. 1-1-02.)

(225 ILCS 95/22.1) (from Ch. 111, par. 4622.1)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 22.1. Injunction.

(a) If any person violates the provision of this Act, the Secretary ~~Director~~ may, in the name of the People of the State of Illinois, through the Attorney General of the State of Illinois, or the State's Attorney of any county in which the action is brought, petition for an order enjoining the violation or for an order enforcing compliance with this Act. Upon the filing of a verified petition in court, the court may issue a temporary restraining order, without notice or bond, and may preliminarily and permanently enjoin such violation, and if it is established that such person has violated or is violating the injunction, the Court may punish the offender for contempt of court. Proceedings under this Section shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, all other remedies and penalties provided by this Act.

(b) If any person shall practice as a physician assistant or hold himself or herself out as a physician assistant without being licensed under the provisions of this Act, then any licensed physician assistant, any interested party or any person injured thereby may, in addition to the Secretary ~~Director~~, petition for relief as provided in subsection (a) of this Section.

(c) Whenever in the opinion of the Department any person violates any provision of this Act, the Department may issue a rule to show cause why an order to cease and desist should not be entered against him. The rule shall clearly set forth the grounds relied upon by the Department and shall provide a period of 7 days from the date of the rule to file an answer to the satisfaction of the Department. Failure to answer to the satisfaction of the Department shall cause an order to cease and desist to be issued forthwith.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 95/22.2) (from Ch. 111, par. 4622.2)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 22.2. Investigation; notice; hearing. The Department may investigate the actions of any applicant or of any person or persons holding or claiming to hold a license. The Department shall, before suspending, revoking, placing on probationary status, or taking any other disciplinary action as the Department may deem proper with regard to any license, at least 30 days prior to the date set for the hearing, notify the applicant or licensee in writing of any charges made and the time and place for a hearing of the charges before the Disciplinary Board, direct him or her to file his or her written answer thereto to the Disciplinary Board under oath within 20 days after the service on him or her of such notice and inform him or her that if he or she fails to file such answer default will be taken against him or her and his or her license may be suspended, revoked, placed on probationary status, or have other disciplinary action, including limiting the scope, nature or extent of his or her practice, as the Department may deem proper taken with regard thereto. Written ~~Such written~~ notice may be served by personal delivery or certified or registered mail ~~at the last address of his or her last notification to the applicant or licensee at his or her last address of record with the Department.~~ At the time and place fixed in the notice, the Department shall proceed to hear the charges and the parties or their counsel shall be accorded ample opportunity to present such statements, testimony, evidence, and argument as may be pertinent to the charges or to the defense thereto. The Department may continue such hearing from time to time. In case the applicant or licensee, after receiving notice, fails to file an answer, his or her license may in the discretion of the Secretary ~~Director~~, having received first the recommendation of the Disciplinary Board, be suspended, revoked, placed on probationary status, or the Secretary ~~Director~~ may take whatever disciplinary action as he or she may deem proper, including limiting the scope, nature, or extent of such person's practice, without a hearing, if the act or acts charged constitute sufficient grounds for such action under this Act.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 95/22.5) (from Ch. 111, par. 4622.5)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 22.5. Subpoena power; oaths. The Department shall have power to subpoena and bring before it any person and to take testimony either orally or by deposition or both, with the same fees and mileage and in the same manner as prescribed by law in judicial proceedings in civil cases in circuit courts of this State.

The Secretary Director, the designated hearing officer, and any member of the Disciplinary Board designated by the Secretary Director shall each have power to administer oaths to witnesses at any hearing which the Department is authorized to conduct under this Act and any other oaths required or authorized to be administered by the Department under this Act.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 95/22.6) (from Ch. 111, par. 4622.6)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 22.6. At the conclusion of the hearing the Disciplinary Board shall present to the Secretary Director a written report of its findings of fact, conclusions of law and recommendations. The report shall contain a finding whether or not the accused person violated this Act or failed to comply with the conditions required in this Act. The Disciplinary Board shall specify the nature of the violation or failure to comply, and shall make its recommendations to the Secretary Director.

The report of findings of fact, conclusions of law and recommendation of the Disciplinary Board shall be the basis for the Department's order or refusal or for the granting of a license or permit. If the Secretary Director disagrees in any regard with the report of the Disciplinary Board, the Secretary Director may issue an order in contravention thereof. The Secretary Director shall provide a written report to the Disciplinary Board on any deviation, and shall specify with particularity the reasons for such action in the final order. The finding is not admissible in evidence against the person in a criminal prosecution brought for the violation of this Act, but the hearing and finding are not a bar to a criminal prosecution brought for the violation of this Act.

(Source: P.A. 85-981.)

(225 ILCS 95/22.7) (from Ch. 111, par. 4622.7)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 22.7. Hearing officer. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 22.2 of this Act, the Secretary Director shall have the authority to appoint any attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of Illinois to serve as the hearing officer in any action for refusal to issue or renew, or for discipline of, a license. The Secretary Director shall notify the Disciplinary Board of any such appointment. The hearing officer shall have full authority to conduct the hearing. The hearing officer shall report his or her findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations to the Disciplinary Board and the Secretary Director. The Disciplinary Board shall have 60 days from receipt of the report to review the report of the hearing officer and present their findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations to the Secretary Director. If the Disciplinary Board fails to present its report within the 60 day period, the respondent may request in writing a direct appeal to the Secretary, in which case the Secretary shall, within 7 calendar days after the request, issue an order directing the Disciplinary Board to issue its findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations to the Secretary within 30 calendar days after such order. If the Disciplinary Board fails to issue its findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations within that time frame to the Secretary after the entry of such order, the Secretary shall, within 30 calendar days thereafter, issue an order based upon the report of the hearing officer and the record of the proceedings or issue an order remanding the matter back to the hearing officer for additional proceedings in accordance with the order. If (i) a direct appeal is requested, (ii) the Disciplinary Board fails to issue its findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations within the 30-day mandate from the Secretary or the Secretary fails to order the Disciplinary Board to do so, and (iii) the Secretary fails to issue an order within 30 calendar days thereafter, then the hearing officer's report is deemed accepted and a final decision of the Secretary. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, if the Secretary, upon review, determines that substantial justice has not been done in the revocation, suspension, or refusal to issue or renew a license or other disciplinary action taken as the result of the entry of the hearing officer's report, the Secretary may order a rehearing by the same or other examiners the Director shall issue an order based on the report of the hearing officer. If the Secretary Director disagrees in any regard with the report of the Disciplinary Board or hearing officer, he or she may issue an order in contravention thereof. The Secretary Director shall provide a written explanation to the Disciplinary Board on any such deviation, and shall specify with particularity the reasons for such action in the final order.

(Source: P.A. 90-61, eff. 12-30-97.)

(225 ILCS 95/22.8) (from Ch. 111, par. 4622.8)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 22.8. In any case involving the refusal to issue, renew or discipline of a license, a copy of the Disciplinary Board's report shall be served upon the respondent by the Department, either personally or as provided in this Act for the service of the notice of hearing. Within 20 days after such service, the

respondent may present to the Department a motion in writing for a rehearing, which motion shall specify the particular grounds therefor. If no motion for rehearing is filed, then upon the expiration of the time specified for filing such a motion, or if a motion for rehearing is denied, then upon such denial the ~~Secretary Director~~ may enter an order in accordance with recommendations of the Disciplinary Board except as provided in Section 22.6 or 22.7 of this Act. If the respondent shall order from the reporting service, and pay for a transcript of the record within the time for filing a motion for rehearing, the 20 day period within which such a motion may be filed shall commence upon the delivery of the transcript to the respondent.

(Source: P.A. 85-981.)

(225 ILCS 95/22.9) (from Ch. 111, par. 4622.9)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 22.9. Whenever the ~~Secretary Director~~ is satisfied that substantial justice has not been done in the revocation, suspension or refusal to issue or renew a license, the ~~Secretary Director~~ may order a rehearing by the same or another hearing officer or Disciplinary Board.

(Source: P.A. 85-981.)

(225 ILCS 95/22.10) (from Ch. 111, par. 4622.10)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 22.10. Order or certified copy; prima facie proof. An order or a certified copy thereof, over the seal of the Department and purporting to be signed by the ~~Secretary Director~~, shall be prima facie proof that:

- (a) the signature is the genuine signature of the ~~Secretary Director~~;
- (b) the ~~Secretary Director~~ is duly appointed and qualified; and
- (c) the Disciplinary Board and the members thereof are qualified to act.

(Source: P.A. 91-357, eff. 7-29-99.)

(225 ILCS 95/22.13) (from Ch. 111, par. 4622.13)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on January 1, 2008)

Sec. 22.13. The ~~Secretary Director~~ may temporarily suspend the license of a physician assistant without a hearing, simultaneously with the institution of proceedings for a hearing provided for in Section 22.2 of this Act, if the ~~Secretary Director~~ finds that evidence in his possession indicates that continuation in practice would constitute an imminent danger to the public. In the event that the ~~Secretary Director~~ suspends, temporarily, this license without a hearing, a hearing by the Department must be held within 30 days after such suspension has occurred, and concluded without appreciable delay.

(Source: P.A. 85-981.)

(225 ILCS 51/40 rep.) (225 ILCS 51/175 rep.)

Section 30. The Home Medical Equipment and Services Provider License Act is amended by repealing Sections 40 and 175.

(225 ILCS 70/27 rep.) (225 ILCS 70/30 rep.)

Section 35. The Nursing Home Administrators Licensing and Disciplinary Act is amended by repealing Sections 27 and 30.

(225 ILCS 95/14 rep.)

Section 40. The Physician Assistant Practice Act of 1987 is amended by repealing Section 14.

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

The foregoing message from the Senate reporting Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 1284 was placed on the Calendar on the order of Concurrence.

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Shipley, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House of Representatives in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:

HOUSE BILL 1514

A bill for AN ACT concerning municipalities.

Together with the attached amendment thereto (which amendment has been printed by the Senate), in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL NO. 1514

Passed the Senate, as amended, October 11, 2007.

Deborah Shipley, Secretary of the Senate

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 1514 as follows:
on page 32, by replacing lines 9 and 10 with the following:

"(CCC) if the ordinance was adopted on December 22, 1986 by the City of DeKalb."; and

on page 69, by replacing lies 20 and 21 with the following:

"South Holland, or (CCC) if the ordinance was adopted on December 22, 1986 by the City of DeKalb and, for redevelopment".

The foregoing message from the Senate reporting Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 1514 was placed on the Calendar on the order of Concurrence.

A message from the Senate by
Ms. Shipley, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House of Representatives in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:

HOUSE BILL 2353

A bill for AN ACT concerning State government.

Together with the attached amendments thereto (which amendments have been printed by the Senate), in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL NO. 2353

Senate Amendment No. 3 to HOUSE BILL NO. 2353

Passed the Senate, as amended, October 11, 2007.

Deborah Shipley, Secretary of the Senate

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 2353 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Children and Family Services Act is amended by changing Section 1.1 as follows:
(20 ILCS 505/1.1) (from Ch. 23, par. 5001.1)

Sec. 1.1. This Act shall be known and may be cited as the ~~the~~ Children and Family Services Act.
(Source: P.A. 86-820.)".

AMENDMENT NO. 3. Amend House Bill 2353 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The State Finance Act is amended by adding Section 5.676 as follows:
(30 ILCS 105/5.676 new)

Sec. 5.676. The Illinois Affordable Housing Capital Fund.

Section 10. The Illinois Affordable Housing Act is amended by changing Sections 3 and 7 and by adding Sections 5.5 and 8.5 as follows:

(310 ILCS 65/3) (from Ch. 67 1/2, par. 1253)

Sec. 3. Definitions. As used in this Act:

(a) "Program" means the Illinois Affordable Housing Program.

(b) "Trust Fund" means the Illinois Affordable Housing Trust Fund.

(b-5) "Capital Fund" means the Illinois Affordable Housing Capital Fund.

(c) "Low-income household" means a single person, family or unrelated persons living together whose adjusted income is more than 50%, but less than 80%, of the median income of the area of residence, adjusted for family size, as such adjusted income and median income for the area are determined from time to time by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development for purposes of Section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937.

(d) "Very low-income household" means a single person, family or unrelated persons living together whose adjusted income is not more than 50% of the median income of the area of residence, adjusted for family size, as such adjusted income and median income for the area are determined from time to time by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development for purposes of Section 8 of the United

States Housing Act of 1937.

(e) "Affordable housing" means residential housing that, so long as the same is occupied by low-income households or very low-income households, requires payment of monthly housing costs, including utilities other than telephone, of no more than 30% of the maximum allowable income as stated for such households as defined in this Section.

(f) "Multi-family housing" means a building or buildings providing housing to 5 or more households.

(g) "Single-family housing" means a building containing one to 4 dwelling units, including a mobile home as defined in subsection (b) of Section 3 of the Mobile Home Landlord and Tenant Rights Act, as amended.

(h) "Community-based organization" means a not-for-profit entity whose governing body includes a majority of members who reside in the community served by the organization.

(i) "Advocacy organization" means a not-for-profit organization which conducts, in part or in whole, activities to influence public policy on behalf of low-income or very low-income households.

(j) "Program Administrator" means the Illinois Housing Development Authority.

(k) "Funding Agent" means the Illinois Department of Revenue.

(l) "Commission" means the Affordable Housing Advisory Commission.

(m) "Congregate housing" means a building or structure in which 2 or more households, inclusive, share common living areas and may share child care, cleaning, cooking and other household responsibilities.

(n) "Eligible applicant" means a proprietorship, partnership, for-profit corporation, not-for-profit corporation or unit of local government which seeks to use fund assets as provided in this Article.

(o) "Moderate income household" means a single person, family or unrelated persons living together whose adjusted income is more than 80% but less than 120% of the median income of the area of residence, adjusted for family size, as such adjusted income and median income for the area are determined from time to time by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development for purposes of Section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937.

(p) "Affordable Housing Program Trust Fund Bonds or Notes" means the bonds or notes issued by the Program Administrator under the Illinois Housing Development Act to further the purposes of this Act.

(q) "Trust Fund Moneys" means all moneys, deposits, revenues, income, interest, dividends, receipts, taxes, proceeds and other amounts or funds deposited or to be deposited in the Trust Fund pursuant to Section 5(b) of this Act and any proceeds, investments or increase thereof.

(r) "Program Escrow" means accounts, except those accounts relating to any Affordable Housing Program Trust Fund Bonds or Notes, designated by the Program Administrator, into which Trust Fund Moneys are deposited.

(Source: P.A. 91-357, eff. 7-29-99.)

(310 ILCS 65/5.5 new)

Sec. 5.5. Illinois Affordable Housing Capital Fund.

(a) There is hereby created the Illinois Affordable Housing Capital Fund, hereinafter referred to as the "Capital Fund", to be held as a separate fund within the State treasury and to be administered by the Program Administrator. The purpose of the Capital Fund is to finance projects of the Illinois Affordable Housing Program as authorized by the Illinois Housing Development Authority's comprehensive plan and approved by the Program Administrator. The Funding Agent shall establish, within the Capital Fund, a general account to be used for expenditures associated with implementing the provisions of the Illinois Housing Development Authority's comprehensive plan, a Commitment Account, and a Development Credits Account. The Funding Agent shall authorize distribution of Capital Fund moneys to the Program Administrator or a payee designated by the Program Administrator for purposes authorized by this Act. After receipt of the Capital Fund moneys by the Program Administrator or designated payee, the Program Administrator shall ensure that all those moneys are expended for a public purpose and only as authorized by this Act.

(b) There shall be deposited in the Capital Fund such amounts as may become available under the provisions of this Act, including, but not limited to:

(1) any appropriations made to the Funding Agent on behalf of the Program Administrator pursuant to an issuance of General Obligation Bonds of the State of Illinois;

(2) all receipts, including dividends, principal, and interest repayments, attributable to any loans or agreements funded from the Capital Fund;

(3) all proceeds of assets of whatever nature received by the Program Administrator and attributable to default with respect to loans or agreements funded from the Capital Fund;

(4) all fees or charges collected by the Program Administrator or Funding Agent in connection with

loans or agreements funded from the Capital Fund pursuant to this Act:

(5) any other funds as appropriated by the General Assembly; and

(6) any income, less any administrative costs and fees associated with the Program Escrow, received by the Program Administrator that is derived from moneys in the Capital Fund held in the Program Escrow prior to expenditure of such moneys.

(310 ILCS 65/7) (from Ch. 67 1/2, par. 1257)

Sec. 7. Powers of the Program Administrator. The Program Administrator, in addition to the powers set forth in the Illinois Housing Development Act and the powers identified in Sections 8 and 9 of this Act, has the power to:

(a) identify, select and make financing available to eligible applicants from monies in the Trust Fund or the Capital Fund or from monies secured by the Trust Fund or the Capital Fund for affordable housing for low and very low-income families;

(b) purchase first and second mortgages, to make secured, unsecured or deferred repayment loans, to make no interest or low interest loans or to issue grants, payments or subsidies for the predevelopment expenses, acquisition, construction, rehabilitation development, operation, insurance, or retention of projects in support of affordable single family and multi-family housing for low and very low-income households;

(c) expend monies for mortgage participation certificates representing an undivided interest in specified, first-lien conventional residential Illinois mortgages which are underwritten, insured, guaranteed or purchased by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation;

(d) fix, determine, charge and collect any fees, costs and expenses, including without limitation, any application fees, commitment or servicing fees, program fees, financing charges, or publication fees in connection with activities under this Act;

(e) establish applications, notification procedures, and other forms, and to prepare and issue rules deemed necessary and appropriate to implement this Act with consultation from the Commission; and to issue emergency rules, as necessary, for program implementation needed prior to publication of the first annual plan required by Section 12 of this Act;

(f) make and enter into and enforce all loans, loan commitments, contracts and agreements necessary, convenient or desirable to the performance of its duties and the execution of its powers under this Act;

(g) consent, subject to the provisions of any contract or agreement with another person, whenever it deems it is necessary or desirable in the fulfillment of the purposes of this Act, to the modification or restructuring of any loan commitment, loan, contract or agreement to which the Program Administrator is a party;

(h) acquire by purchase, gift, or foreclosure, but not by condemnation, any real or personal property, or any interest therein, to procure insurance against loss, to enter into any lease of property and to hold, sell, assign, lease, mortgage or otherwise dispose of any real or personal property, or any interest therein, or relinquish any right, title, claim, lien, interest, easement or demand however acquired, and to do any of the foregoing by public or private sale;

(i) subject to the provisions of any contract or agreement with another party to collect, enforce the collection of, and foreclose on any property or collateral securing its loan or loans, mortgage or mortgages, and acquire or take possession of such property or collateral and release or relinquish any right, title, claim, lien, interest, easement, or demand in property foreclosed by it or to sell the same at public or private sale, with or without bidding, and otherwise deal with such collateral as may be necessary to protect the interest of the Program Administrator;

(j) sell any eligible loan made by the Program Administrator or mortgage interest owned by it, at public or private sale, with or without bidding, either singly or in groups, or in shares of loans or shares of groups of loans, and to deposit and invest the funds derived from such sales in any manner authorized by this Act;

(k) provide, contract or arrange, or participate with or enter into agreements with any department, agency or authority of the United States or of this State, or any local unit of government, or any banking institution, insurance company, trust or fiduciary or any foundation or not-for-profit agency for the review, application, servicing, processing or administration of any proposed loan, grant, application, servicing, processing or administration of any proposed loan, grant, agreement, or contract of the Department when such arrangement is in furtherance of this Act;

(l) receive and accept any gifts, grants, donations or contributions from any source, of money, property, labor or other things of value, to be held, used and applied to carry out the purposes

of this Act subject to including, but not limited to, gifts or grants from any Department or agency of the United States or the State or from any local unit of government, not-for-profit organization or private firm or individual for any purpose consistent with this Act; and

(m) exercise such other powers as are necessary or incidental to the administration of this Act or performance of duties under this Act.

(Source: P.A. 91-357, eff. 7-29-99.)

(310 ILCS 65/8.5 new)

Sec. 8.5. Uses of Illinois Affordable Housing Capital Fund; report.

(a) Subject to annual appropriation to the Funding Agent, the Illinois Affordable Housing Capital Fund may be used to make grants, mortgages, or other loans to acquire, construct, rehabilitate, develop, insure, and retain affordable single-family and multi-family housing in this State for low-income and very low-income households. The majority of moneys appropriated to the Illinois Affordable Housing Capital Fund in any given year are to be used for affordable housing for very low-income households.

(b) The Illinois Housing Development Authority shall submit an annual report to the General Assembly and the Governor regarding the Illinois Affordable Housing Capital Fund."

The foregoing message from the Senate reporting Senate Amendments numbered 1 and 3 to HOUSE BILL 2353 were placed on the Calendar on the order of Concurrence.

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Shipley, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House in the adoption of their amendment to a bill of the following title, to-wit:

SENATE BILL NO. 478

A bill for AN ACT concerning civil law.

House Amendment No. 3 to SENATE BILL NO. 478.

Action taken by the Senate, October 11, 2007.

Deborah Shipley, Secretary of the Senate

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Shipley, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House in the adoption of their amendment to a bill of the following title, to-wit:

SENATE BILL NO. 753

A bill for AN ACT concerning government.

House Amendment No. 2 to SENATE BILL NO. 753.

Action taken by the Senate, October 11, 2007.

Deborah Shipley, Secretary of the Senate

CHANGE OF SPONSORSHIP

With the consent of the affected members, Representative John Bradley was removed as principal sponsor, and Representative Molaro became the new principal sponsor of HOUSE BILL 563.

With the consent of the affected members, Representative Flider was removed as principal sponsor, and Representative Pritchard became the new principal sponsor of HOUSE BILL 1514.

With the consent of the affected members, Representative Beiser was removed as principal sponsor, and Representative Feigenholtz became the new principal sponsor of HOUSE BILL 921.

With the consent of the affected members, Representative Schmitz was removed as principal sponsor, and Representative Moffitt became the new principal sponsor of SENATE BILL 775.

DISTRIBUTION OF SUPPLEMENTAL CALENDAR

Supplemental Calendar No. 1 was distributed to the Members at 1:09 o'clock p.m.

ACTION ON VETO MOTIONS

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Hernandez moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 544, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for change notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

112, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 2)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House concurred with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for Change notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Mathias moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 764, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for change notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

72, Yeas; 39, Nays; 1, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 3)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House concurred with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for Change notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Yarbrough moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 774, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for change notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

Representative Graham moves the previous question.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

63, Yeas; 48, Nays; 1, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 4)

Having failed to receive the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, the motion was declared lost.

And the House refused to concur with the Senate in the passage of the bill, over the Governor's Specific Recommendations for Change.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Bassi moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 1201, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for change notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

105, Yeas; 7, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 5)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House concurred with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for Change notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Holbrook moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 1366, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for change notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

112, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 6)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House concurred with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for Change notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Flider moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 1553, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for change notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

83, Yeas; 28, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 7)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House concurred with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for Change notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Golar moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 1664, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for change notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

112, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 8)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House concurred with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for Change notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Brosnahan moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 121, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

76, Yeas; 34, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 9)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House does concur with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Chapa LaVia moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 186, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

112, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 10)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House does concur with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Flider moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 247, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

109, Yeas; 3, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 11)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House does concur with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Verschoore moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 262, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

95, Yeas; 17, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 12)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House does concur with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Bellock moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 285, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

71, Yeas; 41, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 13)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House does concur with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Poe moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 514, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

110, Yeas; 2, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 14)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House does concur with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Beiser moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 627, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

112, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 15)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House does concur with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Biggins moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 735, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

108, Yeas; 4, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 16)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House does concur with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Verschoore moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 835, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

79, Yeas; 33, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 17)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House does concur with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Berrios moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 1011, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

85, Yeas; 27, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 18)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House does concur with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Molaro moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 1344, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

112, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 19)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House does concur with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

ACTION ON MOTIONS

Pursuant to the motion submitted previously, Representative Eddy asked for unanimous consent to discharge the Committee on Rules from further consideration of HOUSE BILL 4151 and advance to the order of Second Reading.

Representative Lang objected to the motion.

The motion failed.

Representative Eddy moved to appeal the ruling of the Chair.

Representative Lang moved that the motion to appeal the ruling of the Chair is out of order.

Representative Black moved that the applicable rule be suspended.

The questions is shall the Chair be sustained.
 And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:
 63, Yeas; 49, Nays; 0, Answering Present.
 (ROLL CALL 20)
 The motion prevailed.

ACTION ON VETO MOTIONS

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative William Davis moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 1463, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:
 74, Yeas; 37, Nays; 0, Answering Present.
 (ROLL CALL 21)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House does concur with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Veto of the Governor notwithstanding.
 Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

HOUSE BILLS ON SECOND READING

Having been reproduced, the following bill was taken up, read by title a second time and held on the order of Second Reading: HOUSE BILL 2544.

ACTION ON VETO MOTIONS

Pursuant to the Motion submitted previously, Representative Mathias moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 229, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for change notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:
 92, Yeas; 9, Nays; 11, Answering Present.
 (ROLL CALL 22)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House concurred with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for Change notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

SENATE BILLS ON SECOND READING

SENATE BILL 934. Having been read by title a second time on October 10, 2007, and held on the order of Second Reading, the same was again taken up.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Human Services, adopted and reproduced.

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 934 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The State Employees Group Insurance Act of 1971 is amended by changing Section 10 as follows:

(5 ILCS 375/10) (from Ch. 127, par. 530)

Sec. 10. Payments by State; premiums.

(a) The State shall pay the cost of basic non-contributory group life insurance and, subject to member paid contributions set by the Department or required by this Section, the basic program of group health benefits on each eligible member, except a member, not otherwise covered by this Act, who has retired as a participating member under Article 2 of the Illinois Pension Code but is ineligible for the retirement annuity under Section 2-119 of the Illinois Pension Code, and part of each eligible member's and retired

member's premiums for health insurance coverage for enrolled dependents as provided by Section 9. The State shall pay the cost of the basic program of group health benefits only after benefits are reduced by the amount of benefits covered by Medicare for all members and dependents who are eligible for benefits under Social Security or the Railroad Retirement system or who had sufficient Medicare-covered government employment, except that such reduction in benefits shall apply only to those members and dependents who (1) first become eligible for such Medicare coverage on or after July 1, 1992; or (2) are Medicare-eligible members or dependents of a local government unit which began participation in the program on or after July 1, 1992; or (3) remain eligible for, but no longer receive Medicare coverage which they had been receiving on or after July 1, 1992. The Department may determine the aggregate level of the State's contribution on the basis of actual cost of medical services adjusted for age, sex or geographic or other demographic characteristics which affect the costs of such programs.

The cost of participation in the basic program of group health benefits for the dependent or survivor of a living or deceased retired employee who was formerly employed by the University of Illinois in the Cooperative Extension Service and would be an annuitant but for the fact that he or she was made ineligible to participate in the State Universities Retirement System by clause (4) of subsection (a) of Section 15-107 of the Illinois Pension Code shall not be greater than the cost of participation that would otherwise apply to that dependent or survivor if he or she were the dependent or survivor of an annuitant under the State Universities Retirement System.

(a-1) Beginning January 1, 1998, for each person who becomes a new SERS annuitant and participates in the basic program of group health benefits, the State shall contribute toward the cost of the annuitant's coverage under the basic program of group health benefits an amount equal to 5% of that cost for each full year of creditable service upon which the annuitant's retirement annuity is based, up to a maximum of 100% for an annuitant with 20 or more years of creditable service. The remainder of the cost of a new SERS annuitant's coverage under the basic program of group health benefits shall be the responsibility of the annuitant. In the case of a new SERS annuitant who has elected to receive an alternative retirement cancellation payment under Section 14-108.5 of the Illinois Pension Code in lieu of an annuity, for the purposes of this subsection the annuitant shall be deemed to be receiving a retirement annuity based on the number of years of creditable service that the annuitant had established at the time of his or her termination of service under SERS.

(a-2) Beginning January 1, 1998, for each person who becomes a new SERS survivor and participates in the basic program of group health benefits, the State shall contribute toward the cost of the survivor's coverage under the basic program of group health benefits an amount equal to 5% of that cost for each full year of the deceased employee's or deceased annuitant's creditable service in the State Employees' Retirement System of Illinois on the date of death, up to a maximum of 100% for a survivor of an employee or annuitant with 20 or more years of creditable service. The remainder of the cost of the new SERS survivor's coverage under the basic program of group health benefits shall be the responsibility of the survivor. In the case of a new SERS survivor who was the dependent of an annuitant who elected to receive an alternative retirement cancellation payment under Section 14-108.5 of the Illinois Pension Code in lieu of an annuity, for the purposes of this subsection the deceased annuitant's creditable service shall be determined as of the date of termination of service rather than the date of death.

(a-3) Beginning January 1, 1998, for each person who becomes a new SURS annuitant and participates in the basic program of group health benefits, the State shall contribute toward the cost of the annuitant's coverage under the basic program of group health benefits an amount equal to 5% of that cost for each full year of creditable service upon which the annuitant's retirement annuity is based, up to a maximum of 100% for an annuitant with 20 or more years of creditable service. The remainder of the cost of a new SURS annuitant's coverage under the basic program of group health benefits shall be the responsibility of the annuitant.

(a-4) (Blank).

(a-5) Beginning January 1, 1998, for each person who becomes a new SURS survivor and participates in the basic program of group health benefits, the State shall contribute toward the cost of the survivor's coverage under the basic program of group health benefits an amount equal to 5% of that cost for each full year of the deceased employee's or deceased annuitant's creditable service in the State Universities Retirement System on the date of death, up to a maximum of 100% for a survivor of an employee or annuitant with 20 or more years of creditable service. The remainder of the cost of the new SURS survivor's coverage under the basic program of group health benefits shall be the responsibility of the survivor.

(a-6) Beginning July 1, 1998, for each person who becomes a new TRS State annuitant and participates

in the basic program of group health benefits, the State shall contribute toward the cost of the annuitant's coverage under the basic program of group health benefits an amount equal to 5% of that cost for each full year of creditable service as a teacher as defined in paragraph (2), (3), or (5) of Section 16-106 of the Illinois Pension Code upon which the annuitant's retirement annuity is based, up to a maximum of 100%; except that the State contribution shall be 12.5% per year (rather than 5%) for each full year of creditable service as a regional superintendent or assistant regional superintendent of schools. The remainder of the cost of a new TRS State annuitant's coverage under the basic program of group health benefits shall be the responsibility of the annuitant.

(a-7) Beginning July 1, 1998, for each person who becomes a new TRS State survivor and participates in the basic program of group health benefits, the State shall contribute toward the cost of the survivor's coverage under the basic program of group health benefits an amount equal to 5% of that cost for each full year of the deceased employee's or deceased annuitant's creditable service as a teacher as defined in paragraph (2), (3), or (5) of Section 16-106 of the Illinois Pension Code on the date of death, up to a maximum of 100%; except that the State contribution shall be 12.5% per year (rather than 5%) for each full year of the deceased employee's or deceased annuitant's creditable service as a regional superintendent or assistant regional superintendent of schools. The remainder of the cost of the new TRS State survivor's coverage under the basic program of group health benefits shall be the responsibility of the survivor.

(a-8) A new SERS annuitant, new SERS survivor, new SURS annuitant, new SURS survivor, new TRS State annuitant, or new TRS State survivor may waive or terminate coverage in the program of group health benefits. Any such annuitant or survivor who has waived or terminated coverage may enroll or re-enroll in the program of group health benefits only during the annual benefit choice period, as determined by the Director; except that in the event of termination of coverage due to nonpayment of premiums, the annuitant or survivor may not re-enroll in the program.

(a-9) No later than May 1 of each calendar year, the Director of Central Management Services shall certify in writing to the Executive Secretary of the State Employees' Retirement System of Illinois the amounts of the Medicare supplement health care premiums and the amounts of the health care premiums for all other retirees who are not Medicare eligible.

A separate calculation of the premiums based upon the actual cost of each health care plan shall be so certified.

The Director of Central Management Services shall provide to the Executive Secretary of the State Employees' Retirement System of Illinois such information, statistics, and other data as he or she may require to review the premium amounts certified by the Director of Central Management Services.

The Department of Healthcare and Family Services, or any successor agency designated to procure healthcare contracts pursuant to this Act, is authorized to establish funds, separate accounts provided by any bank or banks as defined by the Illinois Banking Act, or separate accounts provided by any savings and loan association or associations as defined by the Illinois Savings and Loan Act of 1985 to be held by the Director, outside the State treasury, for the purpose of receiving the transfer of moneys from the Local Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund. The Department may promulgate rules further defining the methodology for the transfers. Any interest earned by moneys in the funds or accounts shall inure to the Local Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund. The transferred moneys, and interest accrued thereon, shall be used exclusively for transfers to administrative service organizations or their financial institutions for payments of claims to claimants and providers under the self-insurance health plan. The transferred moneys, and interest accrued thereon, shall not be used for any other purpose including, but not limited to, reimbursement of administration fees due the administrative service organization pursuant to its contract or contracts with the Department.

(b) State employees who become eligible for this program on or after January 1, 1980 in positions normally requiring actual performance of duty not less than 1/2 of a normal work period but not equal to that of a normal work period, shall be given the option of participating in the available program. If the employee elects coverage, the State shall contribute on behalf of such employee to the cost of the employee's benefit and any applicable dependent supplement, that sum which bears the same percentage as that percentage of time the employee regularly works when compared to normal work period.

(c) The basic non-contributory coverage from the basic program of group health benefits shall be continued for each employee not in pay status or on active service by reason of (1) leave of absence due to illness or injury, (2) authorized educational leave of absence or sabbatical leave, or (3) military leave with pay and benefits. This coverage shall continue until expiration of authorized leave and return to active service, but not to exceed 24 months for leaves under item (1) or (2). This 24-month limitation and the requirement of returning to active service shall not apply to persons receiving ordinary or accidental

disability benefits or retirement benefits through the appropriate State retirement system or benefits under the Workers' Compensation or Occupational Disease Act.

(d) The basic group life insurance coverage shall continue, with full State contribution, where such person is (1) absent from active service by reason of disability arising from any cause other than self-inflicted, (2) on authorized educational leave of absence or sabbatical leave, or (3) on military leave with pay and benefits.

(e) Where the person is in non-pay status for a period in excess of 30 days or on leave of absence, other than by reason of disability, educational or sabbatical leave, or military leave with pay and benefits, such person may continue coverage only by making personal payment equal to the amount normally contributed by the State on such person's behalf. Such payments and coverage may be continued: (1) until such time as the person returns to a status eligible for coverage at State expense, but not to exceed 24 months, (2) until such person's employment or annuitant status with the State is terminated, or (3) for a maximum period of 4 years for members on military leave with pay and benefits and military leave without pay and benefits (exclusive of any additional service imposed pursuant to law).

(f) The Department shall establish by rule the extent to which other employee benefits will continue for persons in non-pay status or who are not in active service.

(g) The State shall not pay the cost of the basic non-contributory group life insurance, program of health benefits and other employee benefits for members who are survivors as defined by paragraphs (1) and (2) of subsection (q) of Section 3 of this Act. The costs of benefits for these survivors shall be paid by the survivors or by the University of Illinois Cooperative Extension Service, or any combination thereof. However, the State shall pay the amount of the reduction in the cost of participation, if any, resulting from the amendment to subsection (a) made by this amendatory Act of the 91st General Assembly.

(h) Those persons occupying positions with any department as a result of emergency appointments pursuant to Section 8b.8 of the Personnel Code who are not considered employees under this Act shall be given the option of participating in the programs of group life insurance, health benefits and other employee benefits. Such persons electing coverage may participate only by making payment equal to the amount normally contributed by the State for similarly situated employees. Such amounts shall be determined by the Director. Such payments and coverage may be continued until such time as the person becomes an employee pursuant to this Act or such person's appointment is terminated.

(i) Any unit of local government within the State of Illinois may apply to the Director to have its employees, annuitants, and their dependents provided group health coverage under this Act on a non-insured basis. To participate, a unit of local government must agree to enroll all of its employees, who may select coverage under either the State group health benefits plan or a health maintenance organization that has contracted with the State to be available as a health care provider for employees as defined in this Act. A unit of local government must remit the entire cost of providing coverage under the State group health benefits plan or, for coverage under a health maintenance organization, an amount determined by the Director based on an analysis of the sex, age, geographic location, or other relevant demographic variables for its employees, except that the unit of local government shall not be required to enroll those of its employees who are covered spouses or dependents under this plan or another group policy or plan providing health benefits as long as (1) an appropriate official from the unit of local government attests that each employee not enrolled is a covered spouse or dependent under this plan or another group policy or plan, and (2) at least 85% of the employees are enrolled and the unit of local government remits the entire cost of providing coverage to those employees, except that a participating school district must have enrolled at least 85% of its full-time employees who have not waived coverage under the district's group health plan by participating in a component of the district's cafeteria plan. A participating school district is not required to enroll a full-time employee who has waived coverage under the district's health plan, provided that an appropriate official from the participating school district attests that the full-time employee has waived coverage by participating in a component of the district's cafeteria plan. For the purposes of this subsection, "participating school district" includes a unit of local government whose primary purpose is education as defined by the Department's rules.

Employees of a participating unit of local government who are not enrolled due to coverage under another group health policy or plan may enroll in the event of a qualifying change in status, special enrollment, special circumstance as defined by the Director, or during the annual Benefit Choice Period. A participating unit of local government may also elect to cover its annuitants. Dependent coverage shall be offered on an optional basis, with the costs paid by the unit of local government, its employees, or some combination of the two as determined by the unit of local government. The unit of local government shall be responsible for timely collection and transmission of dependent premiums.

The Director shall annually determine monthly rates of payment, subject to the following constraints:

(1) In the first year of coverage, the rates shall be equal to the amount normally charged to State employees for elected optional coverages or for enrolled dependents coverages or other contributory coverages, or contributed by the State for basic insurance coverages on behalf of its employees, adjusted for differences between State employees and employees of the local government in age, sex, geographic location or other relevant demographic variables, plus an amount sufficient to pay for the additional administrative costs of providing coverage to employees of the unit of local government and their dependents.

(2) In subsequent years, a further adjustment shall be made to reflect the actual prior years' claims experience of the employees of the unit of local government.

In the case of coverage of local government employees under a health maintenance organization, the Director shall annually determine for each participating unit of local government the maximum monthly amount the unit may contribute toward that coverage, based on an analysis of (i) the age, sex, geographic location, and other relevant demographic variables of the unit's employees and (ii) the cost to cover those employees under the State group health benefits plan. The Director may similarly determine the maximum monthly amount each unit of local government may contribute toward coverage of its employees' dependents under a health maintenance organization.

Monthly payments by the unit of local government or its employees for group health benefits plan or health maintenance organization coverage shall be deposited in the Local Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund.

The Local Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund is hereby created as a nonappropriated trust fund to be held outside the State Treasury, with the State Treasurer as custodian. The Local Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund shall be a continuing fund not subject to fiscal year limitations. All revenues arising from the administration of the health benefits program established under this Section shall be deposited into the Local Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund. Any interest earned on moneys in the Local Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund shall be deposited into the Fund. All expenditures from this Fund shall be used for payments for health care benefits for local government and rehabilitation facility employees, annuitants, and dependents, and to reimburse the Department or its administrative service organization for all expenses incurred in the administration of benefits. No other State funds may be used for these purposes.

A local government employer's participation or desire to participate in a program created under this subsection shall not limit that employer's duty to bargain with the representative of any collective bargaining unit of its employees.

(j) Any rehabilitation facility within the State of Illinois may apply to the Director to have its employees, annuitants, and their eligible dependents provided group health coverage under this Act on a non-insured basis. To participate, a rehabilitation facility must agree to enroll all of its employees and remit the entire cost of providing such coverage for its employees, except that the rehabilitation facility shall not be required to enroll those of its employees who are covered spouses or dependents under this plan or another group policy or plan providing health benefits as long as (1) an appropriate official from the rehabilitation facility attests that each employee not enrolled is a covered spouse or dependent under this plan or another group policy or plan, and (2) at least 85% of the employees are enrolled and the rehabilitation facility remits the entire cost of providing coverage to those employees. Employees of a participating rehabilitation facility who are not enrolled due to coverage under another group health policy or plan may enroll in the event of a qualifying change in status, special enrollment, special circumstance as defined by the Director, or during the annual Benefit Choice Period. A participating rehabilitation facility may also elect to cover its annuitants. Dependent coverage shall be offered on an optional basis, with the costs paid by the rehabilitation facility, its employees, or some combination of the 2 as determined by the rehabilitation facility. The rehabilitation facility shall be responsible for timely collection and transmission of dependent premiums.

The Director shall annually determine quarterly rates of payment, subject to the following constraints:

(1) In the first year of coverage, the rates shall be equal to the amount normally charged to State employees for elected optional coverages or for enrolled dependents coverages or other contributory coverages on behalf of its employees, adjusted for differences between State employees and employees of the rehabilitation facility in age, sex, geographic location or other relevant demographic variables, plus an amount sufficient to pay for the additional administrative costs of providing coverage to employees of the rehabilitation facility and their dependents.

(2) In subsequent years, a further adjustment shall be made to reflect the actual prior

years' claims experience of the employees of the rehabilitation facility.

Monthly payments by the rehabilitation facility or its employees for group health benefits shall be deposited in the Local Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund.

(k) Any domestic violence shelter or service within the State of Illinois may apply to the Director to have its employees, annuitants, and their dependents provided group health coverage under this Act on a non-insured basis. To participate, a domestic violence shelter or service must agree to enroll all of its employees and pay the entire cost of providing such coverage for its employees. A participating domestic violence shelter may also elect to cover its annuitants. Dependent coverage shall be offered on an optional basis, with employees, or some combination of the 2 as determined by the domestic violence shelter or service. The domestic violence shelter or service shall be responsible for timely collection and transmission of dependent premiums.

The Director shall annually determine rates of payment, subject to the following constraints:

(1) In the first year of coverage, the rates shall be equal to the amount normally charged to State employees for elected optional coverages or for enrolled dependents coverages or other contributory coverages on behalf of its employees, adjusted for differences between State employees and employees of the domestic violence shelter or service in age, sex, geographic location or other relevant demographic variables, plus an amount sufficient to pay for the additional administrative costs of providing coverage to employees of the domestic violence shelter or service and their dependents.

(2) In subsequent years, a further adjustment shall be made to reflect the actual prior years' claims experience of the employees of the domestic violence shelter or service.

Monthly payments by the domestic violence shelter or service or its employees for group health insurance shall be deposited in the Local Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund.

(l) A public community college or entity organized pursuant to the Public Community College Act may apply to the Director initially to have only annuitants not covered prior to July 1, 1992 by the district's health plan provided health coverage under this Act on a non-insured basis. The community college must execute a 2-year contract to participate in the Local Government Health Plan. Any annuitant may enroll in the event of a qualifying change in status, special enrollment, special circumstance as defined by the Director, or during the annual Benefit Choice Period.

The Director shall annually determine monthly rates of payment subject to the following constraints: for those community colleges with annuitants only enrolled, first year rates shall be equal to the average cost to cover claims for a State member adjusted for demographics, Medicare participation, and other factors; and in the second year, a further adjustment of rates shall be made to reflect the actual first year's claims experience of the covered annuitants.

(l-5) The provisions of subsection (l) become inoperative on July 1, 1999.

(m) The Director shall adopt any rules deemed necessary for implementation of this amendatory Act of 1989 (Public Act 86-978).

(n) Any child advocacy center within the State of Illinois may apply to the Director to have its employees, annuitants, and their dependents provided group health coverage under this Act on a non-insured basis. To participate, a child advocacy center must agree to enroll all of its employees and pay the entire cost of providing coverage for its employees. A participating child advocacy center may also elect to cover its annuitants. Dependent coverage shall be offered on an optional basis, with the costs paid by the child advocacy center, its employees, or some combination of the 2 as determined by the child advocacy center. The child advocacy center shall be responsible for timely collection and transmission of dependent premiums.

The Director shall annually determine rates of payment, subject to the following constraints:

(1) In the first year of coverage, the rates shall be equal to the amount normally charged to State employees for elected optional coverages or for enrolled dependents coverages or other contributory coverages on behalf of its employees, adjusted for differences between State employees and employees of the child advocacy center in age, sex, geographic location, or other relevant demographic variables, plus an amount sufficient to pay for the additional administrative costs of providing coverage to employees of the child advocacy center and their dependents.

(2) In subsequent years, a further adjustment shall be made to reflect the actual prior years' claims experience of the employees of the child advocacy center.

Monthly payments by the child advocacy center or its employees for group health insurance shall be deposited into the Local Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund.

(Source: P.A. 94-839, eff. 6-6-06; 94-860, eff. 6-16-06; 95-331, eff. 8-21-07; 95-632, eff. 9-25-07.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

There being no further amendments, the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

ACTION ON VETO MOTIONS

Pursuant to the Motion #2 submitted previously, Representative Yarbrough moved that the House concur with the Senate in the passage of SENATE BILL 774, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for change notwithstanding. A three-fifths vote is required.

And on that motion, a vote was taken resulting as follows:

72, Yeas; 38, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 23)

The Motion, having received the votes of three-fifths of the Members elected, prevailed and the House concurred with the Senate in the passage of the bill, the Governor's Specific Recommendations for Change notwithstanding.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

SUSPEND POSTING REQUIREMENTS

Pursuant to the motion submitted previously, Representative Eddy moved to suspend the posting requirements in Rule 25 in relation to House Resolution 749.

The motion prevailed.

At the hour of 5:28 o'clock p.m., Representative Molaro moved that the House do now adjourn until Friday, October 12, 2007, at 9:00 o'clock a.m., allowing perfunctory time for the Clerk.

The motion prevailed.

And the House stood adjourned.

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-FIFTH
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
QUORUM ROLL CALL FOR ATTENDANCE

October 11, 2007

0 YEAS

0 NAYS

112 PRESENT

P Acevedo	P Dugan	P Krause	P Reboletti
P Arroyo	P Dunkin	P Lang	P Reis
E Bassi	P Dunn	P Leitch	P Reitz
P Beaubien	P Durkin	P Lindner	P Riley
P Beiser	P Eddy	P Lyons	P Rita
P Bellock	P Feigenholtz	P Mathias	P Rose
P Berrios	P Flider	P Mautino	P Ryg
P Biggins	P Flowers	E May	P Sacia
P Black	P Ford	P McAuliffe	P Saviano
P Boland	P Fortner	P McCarthy	P Schmitz
P Bost	P Franks	P McGuire	P Schock
P Bradley, John	P Fritchey	P Mendoza	P Scully
P Bradley, Richard	P Froehlich	E Meyer	P Smith
P Brady	P Golar	P Miller	P Sommer
P Brauer	P Gordon	P Mitchell, Bill	P Soto
P Brosnahan	P Graham	P Mitchell, Jerry	P Stephens
P Burke	P Granberg	P Moffitt	P Sullivan
P Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	P Molaro	P Tracy
P Coladipietro	P Hannig	P Mulligan	P Tryon
P Cole	P Harris	P Munson	P Turner
P Collins	P Hassert	P Myers	P Verschoore
P Colvin	P Hernandez	P Nekritz	P Wait
P Coulson	P Hoffman	P Osmond	P Washington
P Crespo	P Holbrook	P Osterman	P Watson
P Cross	P Howard	E Patterson	P Winters
P Cultra	P Jakobsson	P Phelps	P Yarbrough
E Currie	P Jefferies	P Pihos	P Younge
P D'Amico	P Jefferson	P Poe	P Mr. Speaker
P Davis, Monique	P Joyce	P Pritchard	
P Davis, William	P Kosel	P Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-FIFTH
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 544
 HLTH FACILITY-LANGUAGE ASSIST
 MOTION TO OVERRIDE AMENDATORY VETO
 PREVAILED
 3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

112 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	Y Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	Y Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	Y McCarthy	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Franks	Y McGuire	Y Schock
Y Bradley, John	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	Y Tracy
Y Coladipietro	Y Hannig	Y Mulligan	Y Tryon
Y Cole	Y Harris	Y Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
Y Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	Y Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	Y Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	Y Kosel	Y Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-FIFTH
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 764
STATE GOVERNMENT-TECH
MOTION TO OVERRIDE AMENDATORY VETO
PREVAILED
3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

72 YEAS

39 NAYS

1 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	Y Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	N Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	N Leitch	Y Reitz
N Beaubien	Y Durkin	N Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	N Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	N Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
N Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
N Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	N Fortner	Y McCarthy	Y Schmitz
N Bost	N Franks	Y McGuire	N Schock
N Bradley, John	P Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	N Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	N Miller	N Sommer
N Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	N Mitchell, Jerry	N Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	N Moffitt	Y Sullivan
N Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	N Tracy
Y Coladipietro	N Hannig	N Mulligan	Y Tryon
N Cole	Y Harris	N Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	N Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	N Wait
Y Coulson	Y Hoffman	N Osmond	N Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	N Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	N Winters
N Cultra	Y Jakobsson	N Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	N Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	N Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	N Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	N Kosel	N Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-FIFTH
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 774
 LOTTERY-PUBLIC HEALTH-HIV/AIDS
 MOTION TO OVERRIDE AMENDATORY VETO
 FAILED
 3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

63 YEAS

48 NAYS

1 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	N Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	N Reis
E Bassi	N Dunn	N Leitch	Y Reitz
N Beaubien	N Durkin	N Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	N Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	N Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
N Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
N Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	N Fortner	N McCarthy	N Schmitz
N Bost	N Franks	Y McGuire	N Schock
N Bradley, John	P Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	N Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
N Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	N Sommer
N Brauer	Y Gordon	N Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	N Mitchell, Jerry	N Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	N Moffitt	N Sullivan
N Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	N Tracy
N Coladipietro	N Hannig	N Mulligan	Y Tryon
N Cole	Y Harris	N Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	N Hassert	N Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	N Wait
Y Coulson	Y Hoffman	N Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	N Watson
N Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	N Winters
N Cultra	Y Jakobsson	N Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	N Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	N Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	N Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	N Kosel	N Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-FIFTH
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 1201
 FOREST PRESERVE-PROPERTY
 MOTION TO OVERRIDE AMENDATORY VETO
 PREVAILED
 3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

105 YEAS

7 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	Y Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	Y Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	N McCarthy	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	N Franks	Y McGuire	Y Schock
Y Bradley, John	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	N Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
N Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	Y Sullivan
N Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	Y Tracy
Y Coladipietro	Y Hannig	Y Mulligan	Y Tryon
Y Cole	Y Harris	Y Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
Y Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	Y Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	Y Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
N Davis, Monique	N Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	Y Kosel	Y Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-FIFTH
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 1366
UTILITIES-ARES REGULATION
MOTION TO OVERRIDE AMENDATORY VETO
PREVAILED
3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

112 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	Y Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	Y Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	Y McCarthy	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Franks	Y McGuire	Y Schock
Y Bradley, John	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	Y Tracy
Y Coladipietro	Y Hannig	Y Mulligan	Y Tryon
Y Cole	Y Harris	Y Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
Y Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	Y Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	Y Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	Y Kosel	Y Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-FIFTH
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 1553
 PEN CD-ART 4-DETRMNATN OF DIS
 MOTION TO OVERRIDE AMENDATORY VETO
 PREVAILED
 3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

83 YEAS

28 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	N Krause	N Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	Y Reis
E Bassi	N Dunn	N Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	N Durkin	N Lindner	N Riley
Y Beiser	N Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
N Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	N Mathias	N Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
N Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	Y McCarthy	N Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Franks	Y McGuire	N Schock
Y Bradley, John	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	N Sommer
Y Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	N Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	N Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	Y Tracy
N Coladipietro	Y Hannig	N Mulligan	N Tryon
N Cole	Y Harris	Y Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	N Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	N Nekritz	Y Wait
A Coulson	Y Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	Y Watson
N Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	N Winters
Y Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	N Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	Y Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	N Kosel	N Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-FIFTH
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 1664
 COMMUNITY SRVCS-GOV-COMMISSION
 MOTION TO OVERRIDE AMENDATORY VETO
 PREVAILED
 3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

112 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	Y Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	Y Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	Y McCarthy	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Franks	Y McGuire	Y Schock
Y Bradley, John	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	Y Tracy
Y Coladipietro	Y Hannig	Y Mulligan	Y Tryon
Y Cole	Y Harris	Y Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
Y Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	Y Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	Y Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	Y Kosel	Y Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-FIFTH
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 121
 SEX OFFENDER REG-JUVENILE
 MOTION TO OVERRIDE TOTAL VETO
 PREVAILED
 3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

76 YEAS

34 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	N Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	N Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
N Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	N Rose
Y Berrios	N Flider	N Mautino	Y Ryg
N Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Ford	N McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	Y McCarthy	N Schmitz
Y Bost	N Franks	Y McGuire	N Schock
N Bradley, John	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	N Froehlich	E Meyer	N Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	Y Sommer
N Brauer	Y Gordon	N Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	N Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	N Moffitt	N Sullivan
N Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	N Tracy
N Coladipietro	Y Hannig	Y Mulligan	N Tryon
N Cole	Y Harris	A Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	N Myers	N Verschoore
Y Colvin	N Hernandez	Y Nekritz	N Wait
Y Coulson	Y Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
N Crespo	N Holbrook	Y Osterman	N Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
Y Cultra	Y Jakobsson	N Phelps	A Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	Y Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	N Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	Y Kosel	N Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-FIFTH
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 186
 LIBRARIES-WORKING CASH
 MOTION TO OVERRIDE TOTAL VETO
 PREVAILED
 3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

112 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	Y Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	Y Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	Y McCarthy	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Franks	Y McGuire	Y Schock
Y Bradley, John	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	Y Tracy
Y Coladipietro	Y Hannig	Y Mulligan	Y Tryon
Y Cole	Y Harris	Y Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
Y Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	Y Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	Y Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	Y Kosel	Y Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-FIFTH
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 247
 TIF EXTEND-MT ZION
 MOTION TO OVERRIDE TOTAL VETO
 PREVAILED
 3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

109 YEAS

3 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	Y Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	Y Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	Y McCarthy	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Franks	Y McGuire	Y Schock
Y Bradley, John	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	Y Tracy
Y Coladipietro	Y Hannig	Y Mulligan	Y Tryon
N Cole	Y Harris	Y Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	Y Wait
N Coulson	Y Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
Y Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	Y Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	Y Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	N Kosel	Y Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-FIFTH
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 262
 RIVERBOATS-ADMISSN TAX-REENTRY
 MOTION TO OVERRIDE TOTAL VETO
 PREVAILED
 3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

95 YEAS

17 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	N Krause	Y Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	N Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	N Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
N Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	Y McCarthy	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Franks	Y McGuire	Y Schock
Y Bradley, John	N Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	N Sommer
N Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	N Tracy
Y Coladipietro	Y Hannig	N Mulligan	Y Tryon
N Cole	Y Harris	Y Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	N Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	Y Wait
N Coulson	Y Hoffman	N Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	N Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
N Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	Y Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	N Jefferson	N Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	Y Kosel	Y Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-FIFTH
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 285
MOSQUITO ABATE DIST-ANNEX
MOTION TO OVERRIDE TOTAL VETO
PREVAILED
3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

71 YEAS

41 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	N Dugan	Y Krause	N Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	N Reis
E Bassi	N Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
N Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	Y Rose
Y Berrios	N Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
N Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	N Fortner	N McCarthy	N Schmitz
Y Bost	N Franks	Y McGuire	N Schock
N Bradley, John	N Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	N Froehlich	E Meyer	N Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	N Miller	N Sommer
N Brauer	Y Gordon	N Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
N Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	N Sullivan
N Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	N Tracy
Y Coladipietro	Y Hannig	Y Mulligan	Y Tryon
N Cole	Y Harris	N Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	N Myers	N Verschoore
Y Colvin	N Hernandez	Y Nekritz	N Wait
Y Coulson	Y Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
N Crespo	N Holbrook	Y Osterman	N Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
N Cultra	N Jakobsson	N Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	N Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	N Jefferson	N Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	N Joyce	N Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	Y Kosel	Y Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-FIFTH
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 514
 VEH CD-3 AXLE TOW TRUCK
 MOTION TO OVERRIDE TOTAL VETO
 PREVAILED
 3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

110 YEAS

2 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	Y Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	Y Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	Y McCarthy	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	N Franks	Y McGuire	Y Schock
Y Bradley, John	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	Y Tracy
Y Coladipietro	Y Hannig	Y Mulligan	Y Tryon
Y Cole	Y Harris	Y Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	Y Wait
N Coulson	Y Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
Y Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	Y Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	Y Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	Y Kosel	Y Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-FIFTH
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 627
OFF-HIGHWAY TRAILS FUND
MOTION TO OVERRIDE TOTAL VETO
PREVAILED
3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

112 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	Y Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	Y Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	Y McCarthy	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Franks	Y McGuire	Y Schock
Y Bradley, John	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	Y Tracy
Y Coladipietro	Y Hannig	Y Mulligan	Y Tryon
Y Cole	Y Harris	Y Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
Y Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	Y Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	Y Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	Y Kosel	Y Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-FIFTH
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 735
 MUNI CD-PUBLIC FACILITY CORPS
 MOTION TO OVERRIDE TOTAL VETO
 PREVAILED
 3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

108 YEAS

4 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	Y Reboletti
Y Arroyo	N Dunkin	Y Lang	Y Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	Y McCarthy	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Franks	Y McGuire	Y Schock
Y Bradley, John	N Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	N Tracy
Y Coladipietro	Y Hannig	Y Mulligan	Y Tryon
Y Cole	Y Harris	Y Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	N Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
Y Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	Y Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	Y Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	Y Kosel	Y Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-FIFTH
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 835
LOCAL GOVERNMENT-TECH
MOTION TO OVERRIDE TOTAL VETO
PREVAILED
3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

79 YEAS

33 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	N Dugan	Y Krause	N Reboletti
Y Arroyo	N Dunkin	Y Lang	N Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
N Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	Y Rose
Y Berrios	N Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
N Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	Y McCarthy	Y Schmitz
N Bost	N Franks	Y McGuire	N Schock
Y Bradley, John	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	N Froehlich	E Meyer	N Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	N Sommer
N Brauer	Y Gordon	N Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	N Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	Y Sullivan
N Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	N Tracy
N Coladipietro	Y Hannig	Y Mulligan	Y Tryon
N Cole	Y Harris	N Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	N Hernandez	Y Nekritz	Y Wait
N Coulson	Y Hoffman	N Osmond	Y Washington
N Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	N Watson
N Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
N Cultra	N Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	Y Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	N Jefferson	N Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	N Kosel	N Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-FIFTH
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 1011
CRIMINAL LAW-TECH
MOTION TO OVERRIDE TOTAL VETO
PREVAILED
3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

85 YEAS

27 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	N Reboletti
Y Arroyo	N Dunkin	Y Lang	N Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	N Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
N Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
N Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	N Fortner	Y McCarthy	N Schmitz
Y Bost	N Franks	Y McGuire	N Schock
Y Bradley, John	N Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	N Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	N Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brauer	Y Gordon	N Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	N Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	N Moffitt	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	N Tracy
Y Coladipietro	Y Hannig	N Mulligan	N Tryon
N Cole	Y Harris	N Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	Y Wait
N Coulson	Y Hoffman	N Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	N Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
Y Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	N Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	Y Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	N Kosel	N Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-FIFTH
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 1344
 MOTOR VEHICLE-RELEVANT MARKET
 MOTION TO OVERRIDE TOTAL VETO
 PREVAILED
 3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

112 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	Y Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	Y Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
Y Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	Y McCarthy	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	Y Franks	Y McGuire	Y Schock
Y Bradley, John	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	Y Tracy
Y Coladipietro	Y Hannig	Y Mulligan	Y Tryon
Y Cole	Y Harris	Y Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	Y Wait
Y Coulson	Y Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
Y Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	Y Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	Y Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	Y Kosel	Y Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-FIFTH
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
HOUSE BILL 4151
SHALL THE CHAIR BE SUSTAINED
PREVAILED

October 11, 2007

63 YEAS

49 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	N Krause	N Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	N Reis
E Bassi	N Dunn	N Leitch	Y Reitz
N Beaubien	N Durkin	N Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	N Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
N Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	N Mathias	N Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
N Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	N Sacia
N Black	Y Ford	N McAuliffe	N Saviano
Y Boland	N Fortner	Y McCarthy	N Schmitz
N Bost	Y Franks	Y McGuire	N Schock
Y Bradley, John	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
N Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	N Sommer
N Brauer	Y Gordon	N Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	N Mitchell, Jerry	N Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	N Moffitt	N Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	N Tracy
N Coladipietro	Y Hannig	N Mulligan	N Tryon
N Cole	Y Harris	N Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	N Hassert	N Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	N Wait
N Coulson	Y Hoffman	N Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	N Watson
N Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	N Winters
N Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	N Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	N Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	N Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	N Kosel	N Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
NINETY-FIFTH
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE ROLL CALL
SENATE BILL 1463
SCHOOLS-SILENT REFLECTION-REQ
MOTION TO OVERRIDE TOTAL VETO
PREVAILED

October 11, 2007

74 YEAS

37 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	N Krause	Y Reboletti
Y Arroyo	N Dunkin	N Lang	Y Reis
E Bassi	N Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
N Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	N Riley
Y Beiser	N Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	N Feigenholtz	N Mathias	Y Rose
N Berrios	N Flider	Y Mautino	N Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
N Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	N McCarthy	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	N Franks	Y McGuire	Y Schock
Y Bradley, John	N Fritchey	N Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	N Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
N Brady	Y Golar	N Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brauer	N Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
N Brosnahan	Y Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	N Granberg	Y Moffitt	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	Y Tracy
N Coladipietro	Y Hannig	N Mulligan	Y Tryon
N Cole	N Harris	Y Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	N Nekritz	Y Wait
N Coulson	N Hoffman	N Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	N Osterman	Y Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
Y Cultra	N Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	N Jefferies	N Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	Y Poe	N Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	N Joyce	Y Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	A Kosel	Y Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-FIFTH
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 229
 CIV PRO-SUPPLEMENTAL PROCEED
 MOTION TO OVERRIDE AMENDATORY VETO
 PREVAILED
 3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

92 YEAS

9 NAYS

11 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	Y Reboletti
Y Arroyo	P Dunkin	Y Lang	Y Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	Y Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	Y Lindner	N Riley
Y Beiser	Y Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	P Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	Y Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
Y Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	Y Sacia
Y Black	N Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	Y Fortner	Y McCarthy	Y Schmitz
Y Bost	P Franks	Y McGuire	Y Schock
Y Bradley, John	P Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
Y Brady	Y Golar	N Miller	Y Sommer
Y Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	P Graham	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Stephens
Y Burke	Y Granberg	Y Moffitt	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	Y Tracy
Y Coladipietro	Y Hannig	Y Mulligan	Y Tryon
Y Cole	Y Harris	Y Munson	P Turner
N Collins	Y Hassert	Y Myers	Y Verschoore
P Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	Y Wait
Y Coulson	N Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Cross	N Howard	E Patterson	Y Winters
Y Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	P Yarbrough
E Currie	N Jefferies	Y Pihos	N Younge
Y D'Amico	P Jefferson	Y Poe	P Mr. Speaker
N Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	Y Pritchard	
P Davis, William	Y Kosel	Y Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS
 NINETY-FIFTH
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY
 HOUSE ROLL CALL
 SENATE BILL 774
 LOTTERY-PUBLIC HEALTH-HIV/AIDS
 MOTION #2 TO OVERRIDE AMENDATORY VETO
 PREVAILED
 3/5 VOTE REQUIRED

October 11, 2007

72 YEAS

38 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Dugan	Y Krause	N Reboletti
Y Arroyo	Y Dunkin	Y Lang	N Reis
E Bassi	Y Dunn	N Leitch	Y Reitz
Y Beaubien	Y Durkin	N Lindner	Y Riley
Y Beiser	N Eddy	Y Lyons	Y Rita
Y Bellock	Y Feigenholtz	Y Mathias	A Rose
Y Berrios	Y Flider	Y Mautino	Y Ryg
N Biggins	Y Flowers	E May	N Sacia
N Black	Y Ford	Y McAuliffe	Y Saviano
Y Boland	N Fortner	N McCarthy	N Schmitz
N Bost	N Franks	Y McGuire	N Schock
N Bradley, John	N Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Scully
Y Bradley, Richard	Y Froehlich	E Meyer	Y Smith
N Brady	Y Golar	Y Miller	A Sommer
N Brauer	Y Gordon	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Soto
Y Brosnahan	Y Graham	N Mitchell, Jerry	N Stephens
N Burke	Y Granberg	N Moffitt	Y Sullivan
Y Chapa LaVia	E Hamos	Y Molaro	N Tracy
N Coladipietro	N Hannig	N Mulligan	Y Tryon
N Cole	Y Harris	N Munson	Y Turner
Y Collins	Y Hassert	N Myers	Y Verschoore
Y Colvin	Y Hernandez	Y Nekritz	N Wait
Y Coulson	Y Hoffman	Y Osmond	Y Washington
Y Crespo	Y Holbrook	Y Osterman	N Watson
Y Cross	Y Howard	E Patterson	N Winters
N Cultra	Y Jakobsson	Y Phelps	Y Yarbrough
E Currie	Y Jefferies	N Pihos	Y Younge
Y D'Amico	Y Jefferson	N Poe	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Davis, Monique	Y Joyce	N Pritchard	
Y Davis, William	N Kosel	N Ramey	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

159TH LEGISLATIVE DAY**Perfunctory Session****THURSDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2007**

At the hour of 6:19 o'clock p.m., the House convened perfunctory session.

REPORT FROM STANDING COMMITTEES

Representative Smith, Chairperson, from the Committee on Elementary & Secondary Education to which the following were referred, action taken on October 11, 2007, reported the same back with the following recommendations:

That the resolution be reported "recommends be adopted" and be placed on the House Calendar: HOUSE RESOLUTION 749.

The committee roll call vote on House Resolution 749 is as follows:

18, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

Y Smith(D), Chairperson	Y Davis, Monique(D), Vice-Chairperson
Y Mitchell, Jerry(R), Republican Spokesperson	A Bassi(R)
Y Chapa LaVia(D)	Y Crespo(D)
Y Dugan(D)	Y Eddy(R)
Y Flider(D)	Y Froehlich(D)
Y Golar(D)	Y Joyce(D)
Y Kosel(R)	Y Miller(D)
Y Mulligan(R)	Y Munson(R)
A Osterman(D)	A Phelps(D)
Y Pihos(R)	Y Pritchard(R)
A Reis(R)	A Watson(R)
Y Yarbrough(D)	

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF BILL

The following bill was introduced, read by title a first time, ordered reproduced and placed in the Committee on Rules:

HOUSE BILL 4153. Introduced by Representatives Burke - Mendoza, AN ACT concerning transportation.

At the hour of 6:20 o'clock p.m., the House Perfunctory Session adjourned.